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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to today's hearing of the City Council's

          4  Committee on Transportation.  My name is John Liu, I

          5  have the privilege of chairing this Committee.  We

          6  have a number of items on the agenda this morning.

          7  There are four bills that we will be considering.

          8                 The first bill we will consider is

          9  Intro. 6, which is a measure that would amend local

         10  law, basically to suspend alternate side street side

         11  parking regulations on the Asian Lunar New Year.

         12  The Asian Lunar New Year is the, by far, the most

         13  important holiday for close one million New Yorkers,

         14  and it is a holiday that celebrates the family

         15  spirit.  There are a number of traditions involved,

         16  and it is just, I know from personal experience that

         17  when you are having, when you are starting the day

         18  off with your family, it is kind of hard to say,

         19  oops, it is eight o'clock or oops, it is eleven

         20  o'clock, kids, I have to go out and move the car.

         21                 And so this is a small step, but it

         22  is a significant step towards recognizing the

         23  importance and the contributions made by the Asian

         24  community in New York.  And so that is the first

         25  item we will look to consider and vote on.
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          2                 The Asian Lunar New Year's bill,

          3  Intro. 6 is a bill we considered on June 6th.  And

          4  so I will ask our Committee members, this morning,

          5  to vote on it shortly.

          6                 The second item on the agenda today

          7  is Resolution 442, which has to do with a number of

          8  procedural items related to the Taxi and Limousine

          9  Commission, and we will vote on that as well.

         10                 The third item that we will here this

         11  morning is Intro. 37, and that is a bill of

         12  astounding significance in New York.  And I know

         13  many of my colleagues up here, members of my

         14  Committee, as well as Council members who do not

         15  serve on this Committee, but have been pushing me to

         16  get this bill out and have it passed.  So we will

         17  hear significant testimony on Intro. 37.

         18                 And the final item of equal

         19  importance is Resolution 100, which is a resolution

         20  on calling for Congress to conduct a full

         21  investigation into the happenings of Flight 587.

         22                 I would like to consider Intro. 6

         23  first, I do not have any witness slips for Intro. 6.

         24    Is there anybody who wishes to testify on Intro. 6

         25  today?  There being none, I will again state that we
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          2  did hear significant testimony on Intro. 6

          3  overwhelmingly in favor of its passage, and that

          4  hearing was conducted on June 6th.  So I will at

          5  this point ask the clerk to call the roll on Intro.

          6  6.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Liu.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I proudly vote yes.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Moskowitz.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Addabbo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Koppell.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Martinez.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Lanza.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 7 in the

         22  affirmative, 0 in the negative, and no abstentions,

         23  the item is adopted.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I will ask at this

         25  time for the clerk to keep the role on that Intro.
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          2  Open for a bit of time, because I know a couple of

          3  our Committee members are in route.

          4                 The second item that we will vote on

          5  this morning is Resolution 442.  Resolution 442

          6  pertains to the number of Taxi and Limousine

          7  Commission related items, Resolution 442- A, excused

          8  me. That basically reserves our right in the City

          9  Council to review the proceedings of the Taxi and

         10  Limousine Commission with a respect to a number of

         11  base station applications.  Is there anybody here to

         12  testify on Resolution 442- A?  There being none, I

         13  will ask, are there any questions from any Committee

         14  members?  Council Member Miguel Martinez.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Can I just

         16  get a little clarity, a little detail about the

         17  Reso.  When you say giving the Council the oversight

         18  on what proceeding on what bases?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.  Basically,

         20  what happens is the Taxi and Limousine Commission

         21  has the authority to approve applications for base

         22  station operation.  If we do not have a Resolution

         23  stating that the City Council will like to review

         24  the determinations of the TLC, then the TLC

         25  decisions will stand as they are.  And in general,
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          2  the TLC does not, we do not necessarily have a

          3  problem with anything the TLC does, but we would

          4  like to, at least, review the determinations that

          5  the Taxi and Limousine Commission has made.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Are there any other

          8  questions from Committee members?  Will the clerk

          9  please call the roll on Preconsidered Resolution No.

         10  442- A?

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Liu.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Moskowitz.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Addabbo.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Koppell.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Martinez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Lanza.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 7 in the
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          2  affirmative, 0 in the negative, and no abstentions,

          3  the item is adopted.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I will at this time

          5  also ask the clerk to hold the vote open on

          6  Preconsidered Resolution 442- A for the two members

          7  that are in route.

          8                 It is a pleasure to now open this

          9  meeting for testimony on Intro. 37, which will

         10  revise the list of holidays on which alternate side

         11  of the street parking rules are suspended in New

         12  York City.  This bill will add the religious

         13  holidays of Purim and Ash Wednesday to the list.

         14  Including these two holidays will signal a

         15  recognition of the importance and magnitude that

         16  these holidays represent to the Jewish and Christian

         17  communities, respectively.

         18                 For Jews, Purim is a celebration of

         19  Jewish perseverance and triumph over persecution in

         20  Asia, Persia.  For Christians, Ash Wednesday marks

         21  the beginning of the observance of the holy period

         22  of Lent, which culminates in the celebration of

         23  Easter.

         24                 The City currently fails to recognize

         25  these two important religious holidays for Jews and
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          2  Christians.  Intro. 37 would remedy this failure by

          3  suspending alternate side of the street parking

          4  rules on both days.

          5                 At this time, I will ask if there are

          6  any Committee members who wish to comment on Intro.

          7  37?  Are there Council members who would like to

          8  make comments on Intro. 37?  Council Member Gennaro.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman, and I want to thank all the other

         11  people who have sponsored this bill.  I am not a

         12  member of this Committee, so I thank everybody for

         13  your indulgence.  I am proud to be with you here

         14  today, this is a very significant piece of

         15  legislation that will, you know, greatly impact the

         16  people in my district and the City at large. And I

         17  thank you for your leadership on this.  And later we

         18  will be hearing a Rabbi in my district, Rabbi Mosher

         19  Shur from Queens College, which is in my district.

         20  And I look forward to hearing his comments on this,

         21  and I think it is better that we hear from him than

         22  hear from me, because he is much more of an expert

         23  on it.

         24                 I am happy to be here today, and I am

         25  happy to give this my full support.  And I also wish
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          2  to beg your indulgence, Mr. Chairman, to go on as a

          3  prime on Intro. No. 6 for the Asian Lunar New Year,

          4  could I be added as a prime on that bill, as well?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Absolutely.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Okay, thank

          7  you, Mr. Chairman, and thank you all to the rest of

          8  the members here today, and the good people of the

          9  public who have come and join us today.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I would like to ask

         12  the Counsel to add Council Member Jim Gennaro to the

         13  list of prime sponsors on Intro. 6.

         14                 Is there any other Council member who

         15  wishes to comment on Intro. 37 at this time?  There

         16  will be room for questions also later.

         17                 Okay, can I please ask the

         18  representative of the Administration to come up to

         19  the witness stand to provide testimony on Intro. 37?

         20    And while he does that, let me ask Council Member

         21  James Sanders to cast his votes of Intro. 6 and on

         22  Preconsidered Resolution 442- A.

         23                 And Council Member Sanders.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Thank you

         25  very much, Mr. Chair, you have been most gracious,
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          2  as usual.  I want to vote Aye on the Intros.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  And we

          4  are also joined by Council Member Diana Reyna.

          5  Council Member Diana Reyna, may I ask you to vote on

          6  Intro. 6 and Preconsidered Resolution 442- A?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I vote yes on

          8  Intro. 6 and Preconsidered Resolution 442- A, yes.

          9  Thank you.

         10                 (Changing the vote to 9 in the

         11  affirmative, 0 in the negative, with no

         12  abstentions.)

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  I ask

         14  the clerk to hold the roll open on both of those

         15  items until our final Committee member arrives

         16  shortly.  Thank you.

         17                 Sir, thank you for coming down this

         18  morning to testify on Intro. 37, please proceed.

         19                 MR. CALDERONE:  Good morning,

         20  Chairman Liu and members of the Committee on

         21  Transportation.  I am Victor Calderone, Assistant

         22  Chief of Lot Cleaning Division for the New York City

         23  Department of Sanitation.

         24                 I am here to testify on Intro. 37

         25  under consideration today.  This bill would add
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          2  Purim and Ash Wednesday to the Department's schedule

          3  of street cleaning suspension.  In my testimony I

          4  will discuss the technical and operational aspects

          5  of the Department's street cleaning responsibility

          6  that would impact by the suspension of alternate

          7  side parking.

          8                 Litter control and street cleanliness

          9  in New York City are important quality of life

         10  concerns for the Department of Sanitation.  The

         11  Department is responsible for ensuring cleanliness

         12  over 6,000 miles of the City streets and adjacent

         13  sidewalks.  I am sure that you will agree that

         14  keeping our streets clean is not an easy task given

         15  the number of motorists and pedestrians who travel,

         16  and unfortunately, litter them daily.

         17                 Mechanical brooms are the

         18  Department's most cost effective method of street

         19  cleaning.  Alternate side street parking regulations

         20  provide curb- side accessibility.  So Sanitation

         21  workers can operate mechanical brooms to clean over

         22  6,000 miles of City streets covered under alternate

         23  side parking program.  While a mechanical broom can

         24  sweep an average of 12 curb miles per shift, a

         25  Sanitation worker using a hand broom manually will
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          2  sweep an average of only one curb mile.

          3                 During the early to mid- nineties

          4  when the Department street cleaning budget was

          5  reduced the Department consistently maintained

          6  acceptable levels of cleanliness.  In recent years,

          7  however, the Department has worked diligently to

          8  ensure that levels of street cleanliness in

          9  neighborhoods citywide are improved and maintained.

         10  As a result, the City has achieved historic levels

         11  of street cleanliness.  Of course, cleaner streets

         12  presents a positive image to New York City, and like

         13  safer streets has made the City and attractive place

         14  for business and tourism, which greatly benefits the

         15  City's economy.

         16                 In Fiscal Year 1995, the Department

         17  implemented its segmented mechanical broom street

         18  sweeping program, reducing the amount of time

         19  parking is restricted to street cleaning purpose.

         20  The program initiated for the benefit of both

         21  residential and commercial establishment reduces the

         22  no parking time from three hours to 90 minutes on

         23  week days.  On Saturdays, the Department provides

         24  mechanical broom sweeping only along the metered

         25  streets and commercial areas.  There are currently
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          2  44 Community Board Districts in the Department's

          3  segmented sweeping program, and by 2003 the program

          4  will incorporate 54 Community Board Districts.

          5                 The three districts in Staten Island

          6  and one in Queens 10, Queens 11, and Queens East

          7  will not have segmented sweeping, since they do not

          8  have street cleaning regulations.  In many

          9  neighborhoods throughout the City, street cleaning

         10  is only scheduled one time per week.  And these one

         11  time areas, the Department sweeps one side of the

         12  street one day, and the other side on another, in

         13  these areas that are most likely to be impacted by

         14  suspended street cleaning, when it occurs.  When the

         15  streets are not swept for a period of time,

         16  extensive litter will accumulate along street curb-

         17  side.  This is especially noticeable in commercial

         18  areas on Sunday evenings when street cleaning has

         19  not occurred for two days.

         20                 The Department has previously

         21  testified on similar legislation in the past.  The

         22  Department's position was to oppose such bills.

         23  That position remains unchanged.  The effect that

         24  this would be the addition of two days during the

         25  year, which the Department would be prohibited from
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          2  providing mechanical broom sweeping throughout the

          3  City neighborhoods citywide.

          4                 In this current calendar year, the

          5  City is scheduled to suspend alternate side parking

          6  rules for street cleaning purposes on 32 legal and

          7  religious holidays, excluding those days that fall

          8  on Sunday, when the Department does not provide

          9  street cleaning services.  This could greatly effect

         10  community cleanliness.

         11                 Additionally, the Office of

         12  Management and Budget estimates that the City would

         13  lose an estimated $234,500 in revenue for each day

         14  that alternate side parking is suspended.  Based on

         15  these figures Intro. 37 would cost the City roughly

         16  $469,000 in lost revenue.

         17                 For the above reasons the Department

         18  of Sanitation respectively opposes Intro. 37.  I

         19  would be happy to answer any questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         21  much, Mr. Calderone.  We are joined this morning by

         22  a number of members of the City Council, who I would

         23  like to recognize at this time.  To my right we have

         24  Council Member Simcha Felder from Brooklyn, Council

         25  Member Sears from Queens, Council Member Lanza from
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          2  Staten Island, Council Member Koppell from the

          3  Bronx.  And on my left we have Council Member

          4  Sanders from Queens, Council Member Addabbo from

          5  Queens, Council Member Gennaro from Queens, and

          6  Council Member Reyna from Brooklyn, Council Member

          7  Miguel Martinez from Manhattan. And also behind me,

          8  Council Member Bill DeBlasio from Brooklyn, whose

          9  already tall presence seems to be, seems to be even

         10  a little taller today for some reason.

         11                 Do we have any questions from Council

         12  members for Mr. Calderone from the Department of

         13  Sanitation?

         14                 All right, Council Member Felder.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you for

         16  your testimony.  I am going to say something, and if

         17  I am putting words in your mouth, than you will

         18  please tell me.  Okay?

         19                 You said that the Administration is

         20  opposed to Intro. No. 37, which is the bill that is

         21  Purim and Ash Wednesday. I am assuming that the

         22  Administration is opposed to Intro. No. 6, the Asian

         23  Lunar New Year, as well.  Is that true or not?

         24                 MR. CALDERONE:  Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay, so for
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          2  the record, I just would like the record to show

          3  that the Administration is opposed to all of these

          4  holidays, and they like, Purim, Ash Wednesday and

          5  Asian Lunar New Year just as much as each other in

          6  terms of suspended parking.

          7                 The second question I have for you is

          8  that, is the purpose, would you say that the purpose

          9  of suspending parking is at all, I mean you talked

         10  about revenue.  Is there any reason that you do it

         11  solely for revenue producing?

         12                 MR. CALDERONE:  No, I disagree - -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  You have to

         14  push the button, if you want to, if you want us to

         15  hear you.

         16                 MR. CALDERONE:  Now it is on?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yes.

         18                 MR. CALDERONE:  Okay.  Our standpoint

         19  from the Department of Sanitation is not so much the

         20  revenue aspect, but it is the cleanliness of the

         21  streets.  Again, I think I brought it out to our

         22  attention that there are going to be some areas in

         23  Queens, Brooklyn, and other parts of the Bronx,

         24  where sweeping, it is done once a week, it does

         25  definitely have an impact on the cleanliness of the
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          2  streets.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          5  Member Felder. Council Member DeBlasio.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chair.  I would like to thank the Chair, first

          8  of all, for scheduling this hearing.  I know a few

          9  Committees have more to deal with than the

         10  Transportation Committee, so I really appreciate

         11  that.  This was scheduled for early September.  And

         12  I want thank Council Member Felder and Council

         13  Member Nelson in particular who I was honored to

         14  join as prime sponsors in bringing this legislation

         15  forward, Intro. 37.

         16                 I just want to say, and do not take

         17  this in the wrong spirit, Chief, that Simcha Felder,

         18  Mike Nelson and I, we are reasonable people, like

         19  John Liu, we are reasonable, we will work with you

         20  in any way, and hopefully, you will work with us and

         21  we will be able to get Intro. 37 done.  But if you

         22  do not want to work with us, I just want to remind

         23  you that Assembly Member Dov Hikind is sitting

         24  there.  So, you can work with us, have a nice deal,

         25  or he is up next.
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          2                 No, but on a more serious note,

          3  Chief, I guess the question I would have, and I as

          4  the representative of Borough Park and Kensington,

          5  have come to understand fully the human impact of

          6  these parking rules not being suspended for Purim.

          7  And I have to say, ironically so much of the rest of

          8  my district would have similar feelings, although

          9  for a different reason, around Ash Wednesday.  But

         10  let me dwell on Purim for a moment, because I have

         11  learned over the last few years, and I think in some

         12  ways someone who has learned a fresh maybe sees it

         13  in a particular strong way.             This is a

         14  holiday, a very, very important holiday in the

         15  Jewish year, that essentially requires devout people

         16  to go to their family members wherever they may be

         17  and to their dear friends to pay their respects, to

         18  bring gifts, to celebrate this special day.  And it

         19  is a very, very, obviously, ancient holiday.  And

         20  the irony is, maybe because we live in this modern

         21  world of New York City, maybe we do not fully

         22  appreciate that when people are following a

         23  religious obligation that requires them to go from

         24  place to place in our crowded City, really they have

         25  no choice, if they are following their beliefs.  And
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          2  that means that they must go to places where there

          3  is not necessarily going to be any available

          4  parking, and particularly think about older people,

          5  frail people. Think about the safety issues here, a

          6  lot of the people traveling are seniors, a lot of

          7  them are children, and if they do not find that

          8  place to park one way or another, they are not

          9  fulfilling their obligation.  And I guess given

         10  that, it would seem not only the humanly right thing

         11  to do, the right public policy, but also the

         12  practical thing to do to recognize that, to accept

         13  that it is a very special day, to suspend the rules

         14  to facilitate that day for everyone.

         15                 Rather than, in a sense, and I do not

         16  mean this to you, but just as a matter of policy,

         17  denying a reality that exists and creating a

         18  difficulty for people, people in the middle of

         19  religious observance getting tickets and all the

         20  problems it causes.  So I guess I would like to

         21  know, given the special nature of this day, how you

         22  respond?  Because, yes, we understand revenues,

         23  obviously, but why wouldn't the Department say, this

         24  is a special day and we need to accommodate it?

         25                 MR. CALDERONE:  I do not think the
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          2  Department looks at it as special or religious

          3  holidays or anything like that.  We are dealing or

          4  looking at it as for the whole New York City as

          5  having streets cleaned.  I do not think we separate

          6  legal holidays, we do not separate religious

          7  holidays, we see the impact of street cleaning as a

          8  whole on the whole City.  And as I think I stated,

          9  there are 32 holidays there.  Every time we do not

         10  clean those streets, it does have a positive impact

         11  or negative impact on every single community.

         12                 Again, I will state for the record

         13  that we have no opposition as far as religious,

         14  legal or anything like that.  Our sole reason here

         15  is for the street cleanliness of New York City.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  Chief, I

         17  just say lastly, I appreciate that, and I appreciate

         18  that the Department has worked, in particular with

         19  Council Member Felder and I to try to an accommodate

         20  the special realities of our communities.  But at

         21  the same time I would say, in a City so diverse, so

         22  complex, we have to acknowledge and embrace our

         23  diversity and work with it.  And that is sort of

         24  what New Yorkers have done for generation after

         25  generation, that is why this city lives in the
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          2  relative harmony it does.

          3                 So I understand, I appreciate your

          4  comments, but I would simply say this is a time for

          5  the policy- makers to step back and understand the

          6  nature of this holiday and realize it is singular,

          7  and it really does deserve this accommodation.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you,

         10  Councilman DeBlasio. Council Member Sears.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.

         12  Thank you very much.  You know for the holidays, and

         13  you have heard a lot from my colleagues, and I will

         14  vote for this.  And I think we are all in

         15  understanding and have a great deal of feeling about

         16  the cleanliness of our streets.  I do not think that

         17  there is anyone in the City Council that does not

         18  have that as a top priority.

         19                 But when you look at these holidays,

         20  I know I have a card that says when alternate side

         21  of street parking is suspended, I can tell you they

         22  are not too many.  With 365 days in a year, that

         23  little card that has the days that it is suspended

         24  are very few, in comparison to the rest of the year.

         25    To add to that three more holidays seems so truly
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          2  insignificant, not in the amount of work that you do

          3  or ever, but to believe that that is an impact, that

          4  is added, three days added to a card that I

          5  distribute to constituents that have so few days on

          6  them, it hardly seems, thinks that this is a major

          7  impact that will have, when already you are making

          8  other arrangements for those days of the alternate

          9  side of the street parking.

         10                 I think my questions is, that on

         11  those alternate side street parking days, your staff

         12  is not working, your crews are not working on those

         13  days.  What happens, they are not working those

         14  days, is that a day off for them, do they make up

         15  that day, on those days for the alternate side

         16  street parking that they are not working can they

         17  make up those days?  I think any Community Board,

         18  and there are 59 in the City of New York, would work

         19  with your Department to work out a schedule at the

         20  beginning, your schedule and work out with you how

         21  it compensates for those days that they are not

         22  working.

         23                 MR. CALDERONE:  Okay, I will comment

         24  on the first part of the question.  On the days that

         25  alternate side street parking is suspended, that is

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  usually due to a holiday.  Usually, when there is a

          3  holiday there is suspension of garbage collection on

          4  the streets.  In order to get back on schedule

          5  again, the people that would normally be assigned to

          6  the mechanical brooms will be assigned to helping

          7  clean up the garbage on the streets and to get back

          8  on schedule again.

          9                 Yes, there are, if we do have enough

         10  personnel for that, they will be put in motorized

         11  litter or they will put out an extra mechanical

         12  broom, if they can in certain areas.  But they are

         13  not given a day off, they are assigned to productive

         14  work.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay, all

         16  right.  I understand that, I appreciate that.  It

         17  seems that it then becomes our problem in working

         18  with you at budget time to see exactly what could be

         19  done to perhaps make this not so stressful to the

         20  Administration, but to cooperate and make it so that

         21  it is compatible for the communities as well as your

         22  Department.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         25  Member Sears. Are there any other questions from
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          2  Council members?

          3                 Thank you, Chief for coming down this

          4  morning to present testimony.

          5                 MR. CALDERONE:  Thank you, Mr. Liu

          6  and members of the Committee.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I would like to, at

          8  this time, call our esteemed Assembly Member, Dov

          9  Hikind to come up and present your comments on this

         10  bill.

         11                 ASSEMBLYMAN HIKIND:  First, Chairman

         12  Liu, thank you very much for the opportunity, and

         13  also your being involved in taking leadership on

         14  this very, very important issue.  And my own Council

         15  members, Simcha Felder, Bill DeBlasio and Marty

         16  Golden, let me just, you know, add a little more to

         17  what Rabbi (sic) DeBlasio pointed out about the

         18  holiday.

         19                 This is a holiday that is not only

         20  for people who are strictly observant, hundreds of

         21  thousands of people throughout the City of New York

         22  participate in this wonderful holiday where one of

         23  the key ingredients, not a minor ingredient, but one

         24  of the critical ingredients is, what is called in

         25  Hebrew, (in Hebrew), is to send and bring gifts.
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          2  And what you do, for instance in my home, you

          3  prepare 50, 60, 70 bags of different goodies that

          4  you are going to be bringing to your friends and

          5  neighbors and to poor people and to strangers.  We

          6  actually try to find out people that might not have

          7  that many people bringing gifts that day, to

          8  actually come to their home, knock on their door,

          9  and give them a gift on Purim, that is part of the

         10  holiday.  This is not about some neighborhoods in

         11  Brooklyn, this is not about some neighborhoods in

         12  Queens, this is about all neighborhoods in New York.

         13                 There are people moving throughout

         14  the City, there are traffic jams.  It is probably

         15  one of the most exciting and beautiful days in the

         16  Jewish community involving hundreds of thousands of

         17  people.  And people are constantly moving.  Besides

         18  the dinner that you have, that Bill pointed out,

         19  that people join for dinner at the end of the day,

         20  most of the day is moving from place to place to

         21  drop off the gifts.  Sometimes only for 5 minutes

         22  and then you move to the next stop.  So this is a

         23  wonderful holiday.

         24                 The other part of it is, that I think

         25  people in the Administration just do not get it.  It
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          2  is really quite remarkable that in the Year 2002, we

          3  have to sit here and explain something so simple.

          4  We are talking about the most important job of

          5  government is to be responsive to the people, that

          6  is what government is all about, that is what I

          7  thought.  That we are supposed to reasonably, you

          8  know, we do not have to give everything that the

          9  people want necessarily, but we are supposed to be

         10  responsive to them.  We are supposed to make their

         11  life easier, not more difficult, not more

         12  complicated.

         13                 And I appreciate what Sanitation

         14  does, because nobody wants to live even for one day

         15  without a Sanitation pickup or without out streets

         16  being cleaned.  But give me a break!  I mean, I have

         17  enough faith in Sanitation that they can figure out

         18  how to keep our streets clean and give us these

         19  additional three days to serve people in different

         20  communities, to make their life easier.  Things are

         21  tough enough in the City that we do not have to make

         22  things more complicated that on these holidays,

         23  hundreds of thousands and millions of people have to

         24  figure out, they have to run out or move their car

         25  and be concerned about getting a ticket that they
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          2  cannot afford to pay in the first place.

          3                 And let no one make a mistake, I

          4  mean, it is time to just face it.  Look we need to

          5  have violations and we need to collect revenue, but

          6  the bottom line is that a lot of these violations

          7  and the increasing of revenues is for one purpose,

          8  New York City needs money.  And without actually

          9  stealing people's money, going there during the

         10  night taking it out of their pocket, this is a very

         11  legal way to do it.  But the bottom line is, is

         12  serving our communities, is making life easier, and

         13  why the Administration would argue, fight on this

         14  issue, on the issue of Sanitation, the job can be

         15  done, I have no doubt, I have great faith in the

         16  Department of Sanitation.  And I am sure, if the

         17  Mayor said we are going to do these three days

         18  because it is the right thing, I guarantee you the

         19  Commissioners and Deputies and Assistants will

         20  figure out how to keep the City as clean as the year

         21  before, no doubt about that.

         22                 And the issue of revenue should not

         23  even be talked about.  It is embarrassing to even

         24  raise that.  Because it is about the people and

         25  making their life easier.  That is really the whole

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  story, that is it.  And I very much appreciate the

          3  members of the City Council listening and

          4  understanding, look, we understand, you know, the

          5  Mayor is the Mayor of the whole City, I understand

          6  that. But we are out there in the communities, we

          7  are out there in the streets, we talk to our people

          8  day- in and day- out, the people walking down our

          9  thoroughfares, our streets, our avenues.  And this

         10  is not a big deal.  You know, we are not giving

         11  them, like, wow, you know, boy, the people really

         12  went out on this one.  This is simple, this is ABC,

         13  of us being there for the people and making their

         14  life easier.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you,

         17  Assemblyman.  Are there any questions or comments

         18  from Council members?  Councilman Koppell.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I would just

         20  like to welcome my former colleague, we served

         21  together in Albany for many years.  It is nice to

         22  see you here in these halls.

         23                 ASSEMBLYMAN HIKIND:  Thank you,

         24  Oliver.  But you know what bothers me a little bit,

         25  you and I are like the senior citizens of this
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          2  group, like what is going on.  It is a pleasure,

          3  Oliver.  And let me wish my colleagues, Jewish

          4  colleagues, a happy and healthy year, and all of my

          5  colleagues in government that we only have good

          6  things in the new year.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you,

          9  Councilman Koppell. Councilman Felder.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I have a few

         11  questions for the Assemblyman.  First of all, I

         12  wanted to thank you - -  You have to turn the thing

         13  on, you have to turn it on.

         14                 ASSEMBLYMAN HIKIND:  I was mentioning

         15  the ruggelach.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay.  First

         17  of all, I wanted to thank the Chair for his

         18  leadership on this issue, as well as my colleagues

         19  for being here.  And I want thank the Assemblyman

         20  for taking time out of his busy schedule to be here

         21  today to testify on behalf of this issue.

         22                 How many years have you been serving

         23  in the Assembly?  You have to answer these

         24  questions.

         25                 ASSEMBLYMAN HIKIND:  Twenty
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          2  wonderful, wonderful years.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay, how

          4  many of those years has the issue of, with, I am

          5  going to discuss Purim specifically, even though I

          6  know that you feel very strongly about Ash Wednesday

          7  and the Asian Lunar New Year, I know that when we

          8  had conversations you mentioned that.  But I am

          9  going to ask you about the Purim holiday, how many

         10  years has, have you been trying to get the Purim

         11  holiday alternate side street parking suspended?

         12                 ASSEMBLYMAN HIKIND:  Well we have

         13  been trying to do it for a very, very long time.

         14  And in fact, two years ago during the final year, I

         15  believe, of the Giuliani Administration, Purim was

         16  on a Friday, and in fact, it was suspended.  You

         17  remind me Simcha that just to address the Department

         18  of Transportation in terms of the number of days, it

         19  so happens that it is not 32 days every year that

         20  parking is suspended.  Example, this year, 2002, all

         21  the Jewish holidays, Rush HaShanah, Sukkot, their

         22  are four or five days coming up, where alternate

         23  side is suspended, but it is on the weekend.  So

         24  there is no issue, so literally, you are saving all

         25  of that for the next five years.  So it does not
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          2  always, in fact, add up to 32 days.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  So you would

          4  say that it has been a number of years, at least, a

          5  number of years that you have been trying to get

          6  this suspended.

          7                 ASSEMBLYMAN HIKIND:  Absolutely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Now besides

          9  the joy of the holiday, and the convenience, would

         10  you say that there is a safety factor involved in a

         11  congested community with the fact that when days are

         12  not suspended, double parking, volunteer ambulances

         13  have to get through and things of that sort, is

         14  there a safety issue that has to be addressed?

         15                 ASSEMBLYMAN HIKIND:  That is an

         16  additional issue, no question, in communities like

         17  Borough Park and Flatbush, very, very large

         18  families.  Borough Park is an example, families, the

         19  average size of a family is 10, at least.  You know,

         20  so of course, there is an additional issue in terms

         21  of safety.  Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yes.  So that

         23  would mean that even if the City decided, even if

         24  the Mayor, -  -  Before I get to that, is it true

         25  that Mayor Giuliani vetoed this bill on the last
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          2  days of his Administration?

          3                 ASSEMBLYMAN HIKIND:  Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay.  Would

          5  you say that even if for some reason, even if this

          6  bill were not passed, which it will be, God willing,

          7  that the double parking and the street being as

          8  congested as they are, have in past years caused

          9  harm in terms of the fact that the ambulances and

         10  the volunteer ambulances were unable to get to the

         11  hospitals quickly enough to save people, who were

         12  either suffering from a heart attack or some other

         13  injury in time?

         14                 ASSEMBLYMAN HIKIND:  Yes, I can speak

         15  in particular about Borough Park where we have

         16  Maimonides Hospital, and ambulances usually run down

         17  49th and 47th Streets and so on.  And when, you have

         18  the double parking, we have had complaints,

         19  concerns, we have had accidents, additional

         20  accidents on the holiday of Purim because of the

         21  fact that there is such a lack of parking.

         22                 Look, people have no choice, they

         23  have to move around.  This is not, it is sort of

         24  like the other Jewish holidays when alternate side

         25  parking is suspended, there is no choice.  That is
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          2  sort of the reverse because you cannot move your

          3  car.  You can fine me as much as you want to, I

          4  cannot move my car, it violates my religious

          5  beliefs.  So, you know, there are so many reasons,

          6  but fundamentally, to me, after 20 years in office

          7  and working in a community, and working with people,

          8  you know, it is about serving people.  And this is,

          9  the question is, is it legitimate?  Is it the right

         10  thing to do?  And clearly it is.  And if it takes an

         11  override, I would urge the City Council to do that.

         12  Again, this is about serving our people and doing

         13  what is right, that is the issue plain and simple.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you

         15  very much, and I want to thank you again, for your

         16  leadership on this issue that has been a sore point

         17  for the communities, in our communities and the

         18  communities in the City that really need the help,

         19  and thank you again, for coming down.

         20                 ASSEMBLYMAN HIKIND:  Thank you,

         21  Simcha.  Thank you very much, everyone.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Are there any other

         23  questions from Council members?  Thank you, Assembly

         24  member, for your time this morning.

         25                 ASSEMBLYMAN HIKIND:  My pleasure,
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          2  thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I would like to

          4  call up, ask the next two witnesses to testify on

          5  Intro. 37, we have Rabbi Shur from Queens College,

          6  and we Sam Stober from the Borough Park Community.

          7  Gentlemen, please come up and take a seat at the

          8  witness table.

          9                 We have been joined by Council Member

         10  Bill Perkins, the Deputy Majority Leader, a while

         11  ago, and I know that a number of the members need to

         12  shuttle back and forth between this hearing and the

         13  hearing going on next door of the Public Safety

         14  Committee. So when you see members coming in and

         15  out, that is what is happening.

         16                 Rabbi Shur, welcome.

         17                 RABBI SHUR:  Thank you.  Just a brief

         18  introduction to members of the Council.  The

         19  director of the Hilo Foundation, which is an

         20  International Group, which represents college

         21  students around campuses around the country.  Also,

         22  a resident of Kew Garden Hills where Jim is our

         23  elected representative, and also Jim is a professor

         24  at the Queens College, so we go back to the halls of

         25  education.  And I am a member, and also representing
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          2  our Campus Ministry Association, which is the

          3  Lutheran and the Catholic Newman Center and the Hilo

          4  Foundation, we work closely together at Queens

          5  College, and Jim has spoken to us on several

          6  occasions.

          7                 So, besides that, we also have a very

          8  large Asian American population at Queens College.

          9  It is interesting that the diversity of Queens

         10  College reflects what is going on in these Chambers.

         11    And I just think it is a echo what some of the

         12  previous statements, is that it is an opportunity

         13  for us to express the diversity of our population in

         14  Queens and of the greater City of New York.  And it

         15  is an opportunity to grant respect to these

         16  communities and to put them on the list.  And I

         17  understand the other considerations, but I think

         18  when you weigh the two, it is something special that

         19  we have an opportunity to do it, actually, as our

         20  elected representatives do regardless of the

         21  opposition of the Administration, and it is

         22  something you should vote for.

         23                 So let me tell you a little bit about

         24  Purim and less about Ash Wednesday, because my

         25  minister, Father Wood, told me I should put in a
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          2  good word, so I will talk about that first.

          3                 Many of the communities on campus and

          4  in the greater Queens area observe Ash Wednesday.

          5  And it is a similar type of thing of the Jews

          6  observing Purim, you go to services and when you

          7  come out, there is a ticket on your car.  So after

          8  having a spiritual experience, it is a little bit of

          9  a downer to see this orange ticket on this car for

         10  parking in the wrong space, because as you are

         11  trying to pray, you are worried about when the

         12  meters is going to run out, and/or when the

         13  alternate side of the street cleaning.  And that is

         14  a great dance that is down throughout the City on

         15  various occasions.  So on a spiritual sense it is

         16  very important that we respect the needs of our

         17  various communities, and when they finish their

         18  prayers they should not come out with a reminder

         19  that they parked in the wrong spot.

         20                 Now specifically to the Purim

         21  Festival.  I ask my political advisor this morning,

         22  what should I talk about.  That is my wife, she said

         23  the following, she is a nurse, and she says, you

         24  know I have to take off work on Purim and I have to

         25  drive the kids around, while you go to college and,
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          2  you know, party with the students.  Which is not

          3  exactly what we do, but that is her image of college

          4  work.  And she said, you know you should just tell

          5  them how dangerous it is, where you have to double

          6  park, the kids run across the street to deliver, as

          7  Dov mentioned, these gift baskets to the needy and

          8  to friends, and it is very dangerous.  And you

          9  should just tell them, why shouldn't they just drop

         10  this on this specific day and so it decreases the

         11  danger, why should I worry about my kids, when I

         12  have to take off work, they are out of school, and

         13  they are running around in their costumes?  And I

         14  said, okay, dear, which actually is the ancient

         15  Yiddish adage, yes, dear. Anyway, so I am good for

         16  about two days, right now, because I obeyed my wife.

         17                 But seriously, one of the things that

         18  is mentioned is the safety issue.  And I think after

         19  all the religious issues and the spiritual issues, I

         20  think that is one of the things that we have to

         21  balance between the needs of cleanliness, the needs

         22  of revenue, which are primary these days, and the

         23  needs of safety. And I think as representatives we

         24  have to see the safety of our community, especially

         25  on these days when Purim, which is a religious
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          2  holiday, but also is a community holiday.

          3                 We have in the Jewish community at

          4  Queens College, we have Persian students living in

          5  the Rego Park Area, also, in the Kew Gardens area.

          6  We have Burharin (phonetic) Russian students who

          7  live in the Rego Park and Astoria, and also, Corona

          8  areas, Forest Hills.  And we have Israeli- American

          9  students who live within the Kew Garden Hills.  And

         10  one of the beautiful things about Purim is that all

         11  of these people religious or not, participate, and

         12  there is congestion, there is a lot of giving of

         13  gifts, and we also, at our Foundation give to

         14  homeless shelters during that time, which are

         15  outside of our community, because it is a season of

         16  giving. And we should not be worrying about the

         17  safety of our students or our children.

         18                 And I think when it comes push to

         19  shove, that is the issue, and we should vote in

         20  favor of this resolution, also, Resolution 6, should

         21  go because we have to respect the rights and the

         22  issues of all of our diverse community.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Rabbi

         25  Shur.  Council Member Felder, you have a question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yes.  I have

          3  to, I Chair the Landmarks Committee, and we were

          4  supposed to start at eleven o'clock, and that was

          5  not Jewish time, we were supposed to start at eleven

          6  o'clock, so I just have one question, and I

          7  apologize to Mr. Stober, who I will not be able to

          8  remain for the testimony for.

          9                 But I want to thank Rabbi Shur for

         10  coming down, and I would like you to take this.  I

         11  would like you to pass this around.

         12                 RABBI SHUR:  This is not a ruggelach.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Here, I do

         14  not you to get upset.

         15                 MR. STOBER:  I cannot take until

         16  after I testify.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I give

         18  everyone on the Committee and the Council members,

         19  and share with everybody else here.  I would like

         20  Rabbi Shur to explain what this is.  The audience

         21  can have as, absolutely.

         22                 RABBI SHUR:  This is a three cornered

         23  (in Hebrew).

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yes, but you

         25  have to explain- -
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          2                 RABBI SHUR:  Called a hamentashen.

          3  Okay, so this goes back to the origin of the Purim

          4  Holiday.  Back in the good old days, in Iran, I do

          5  not think there were ever any good old days in Iran,

          6  but anyway, there was a King, Hushveros (phonetic)

          7  and a minister, we call him the Ayah Tolah Hamani

          8  (phonetic).  Anyway his name was Haman, and they, at

          9  that time wore hats, three- cornered hats, not

         10  filled with prunes.  I think prunes was the Jewish

         11  tradition.  They had other goodies.  And on the

         12  Festival of Purim it is traditional to eat these

         13  homentashen and they come in all sizes, this is

         14  medium, they come in small and large.  And if you

         15  continue to eat them the joy of the holiday would

         16  continue.

         17                 So I would just like to say a

         18  brachah.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Brachah is a

         20  blessing.

         21                 RABBI SHUR: (In Hebrew), which is a

         22  blessing. Blessed art thou, our God, the Lord of

         23  Nevirus (phonetic), who makes all kinds of grains.

         24  And the prunes, there is a blessing from the

         25  stomach, I guess, that is internal that is not said
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          2  outwardly.

          3                 But it is a very special thing, and

          4  anyway, it is good way to end my testimony.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 RABBI SHUR:  Thanks so much.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  And thank

          9  you, Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, thank you,

         11  Councilman Felder.  We have a question from

         12  Councilman Gennaro.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  If I may

         14  interrupt?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chair.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Mr.

         18  Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Sure.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I know

         21  Council Member Felder is leaving to attend the

         22  Subcommittee meeting which I also serve.  And

         23  perhaps he would like to echo what I am going to

         24  ask, and that is, I would ask if the roll could be

         25  opened so I could vote on this measure?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Absolutely.  We are

          3  going to, we have one more witness, Mr. Stober, who

          4  will testify on Intro. 37, immediately after we will

          5  be voting on Intro. 37.  I certainly hope that this

          6  very important measure will pass under the

          7  leadership of Council Members Felder and DeBlasio

          8  and Nelson, and the members of this Committee, and

          9  we are also joined by Council Member Gennaro. This

         10  is an important bill that will benefit a great

         11  number of New Yorkers and allow them to celebrate

         12  these important holidays in appropriate matter.

         13                 So we will be taking a vote, and I

         14  will hold it open so that the members who must

         15  attend the other meeting can return to this meeting

         16  in a little bit to vote.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Is there any

         18  way to do it so that we can vote now?  No, that

         19  cannot be done.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I would like to

         21  take the testimony of our final witness.

         22                 MR. STOBER:  I was ready to give

         23  testimony the size of a megillah (phonetic) about

         24  Purim, but due to the lateness of the hour, I will

         25  try to be brief.
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          2                 Good morning, Mr. Chairman and all

          3  honorable members of the City Council.  My name is

          4  Sam Stober, and I am a member of Community Board 12

          5  in Brooklyn, as well as a community activist in

          6  general.  In that capacity I feel the pulse of my

          7  community, and what I say here today reflects the

          8  feelings and sentiments of thousands who are not

          9  here today.

         10                 Before I begin, I want to publicly

         11  thank Councilman Felder, who along with Councilman

         12  DeBlasio and Nelson and other elected officials

         13  spearheaded the campaign to suspend alternate side

         14  of the street parking on Purim.

         15                 Purim is a very festive holiday

         16  commemorating the miraculous deliverance of the

         17  Jewish people from a plot hatched from Kings of

         18  Exodus Grand Vizier (phonetic), Haman.  Among its

         19  highlights is the reaching out of family members to

         20  each other and to neighbors in the spirit of kindred

         21  and friendship.  Charity giving is especially

         22  noteworthy this day, as well as visiting the sick,

         23  indigent, infirmed and elderly.  To that end,

         24  hundreds of hundreds of cars are going to move in my

         25  neighborhood and compounded by other neighborhoods
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          2  throughout the City, makes thousands and thousands

          3  of cars.

          4                 In addition to that, tens of

          5  thousands of children from reform, conservative,

          6  orthodox and Hasidic schools are home. They have no

          7  school that day, and they are all walking about

          8  throughout the neighborhoods where going with their

          9  parents, helping delivering those gifts in the

         10  spirit of friendship to family members and to

         11  neighbors.

         12                 Purim on some years falls out on the

         13  weekend, falls out on a Sunday, so not every year

         14  would it be necessary to have the suspension on the

         15  weekday.  In addition, many Jewish holidays, as

         16  Assemblyman Hikind pointed out fall out on weekends,

         17  like this year, I believe the number of days that it

         18  is necessary to suspend it is cut in half since so

         19  many of them fall out on the weekend.

         20                 So the concerns that were raised here

         21  by Sanitation are not necessarily correct.  In

         22  addition, as Councilwoman Helen Sears asked the

         23  question as to what happens to the staff that is

         24  freed up, the Chief in a way avoided directly

         25  answering her suggestion.  But, if I may suggest,
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          2  that the staff that is not of broom sweeping detail

          3  during those days, can be reassigned to pickup the

          4  bulging trash receptacles that are on public streets

          5  or major thoroughfares, like that I am aware of, 8th

          6  Avenue, 13th Avenue, 16th Avenue and 18th Avenue in

          7  Brooklyn, and in addition, they can be reassigned to

          8  go to those areas that have a especially dirty and

          9  have that cleaned up.  So there is a very

         10  constructive way that can be used for that staff

         11  that is not on broom sweeping detail.

         12                 In addition, the issue of the revenue

         13  it seems that the City may be trying to do something

         14  one way, and not realizing what has happened the

         15  other way.  Coming up, the City wants to raise the

         16  fines for double parking to $105, but the alternate

         17  side of street parking, people cannot have tens of

         18  thousands of cars just disappear in thin air.

         19  People what they do is they move their car to the

         20  other side of the street, which now, somebody is

         21  going to be faced with the choice of getting a $35

         22  summons for leaving the car and not moving it, or

         23  double parking it and getting $105 summons.  So

         24  people face a $35 summons and $105 summons will,

         25  obviously, choose the $35 summons resulting in
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          2  streets not being cleaned.  So the issue of revenue

          3  is really short- sighted in terms of the reality of

          4  the situation.

          5                 And therefore, I ask the members of

          6  this Committee to please vote in favor of having

          7  alternate side suspended for Purim.  It is something

          8  which will help the community, and also the traffic

          9  agents can help direct the traffic flow, because

         10  every Purim there is the potential of having

         11  accidents as a result of having such a large amount

         12  of cars trying to find parking spaces. And that will

         13  be greatly alleviated by having alternate side of

         14  the street parking suspended.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you for your

         17  testimony. Councilman Bill DeBlasio.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chair.  I will be very quick.  I first want to

         20  just thank Mr. Stober, he is a dear friend.  He is

         21  one of the people that made it possible for me to be

         22  sitting here in this very big chair for today's

         23  hearing. And also, someone who not only has been a

         24  real defender of the community, but happens to know

         25  an immense amount of the reality that Parking
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          2  Violations Bureau, and the complexities that attend

          3  to this issue.  So his support of this bill is

          4  particularly important to me.

          5                 I also want to thank Rabbi Shur,

          6  because, you know so much in time, so many times in

          7  the public debate, we do not look back to understand

          8  the origins of an issue, and I think you very

          9  eloquently explained to us the meaning of Purim.

         10  But I also appreciate your sensitivity and your

         11  support when it comes to Asian Lunar New Year or

         12  when it comes to Ash Wednesday.  I think that kind

         13  of vision of all the different pieces of New York

         14  together is particularly appreciated, and I

         15  appreciate your leadership.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you,

         17  Councilman DeBlasio. Council Member Gennaro.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chair.  And thank, Rabbi Shur for coming here

         20  today.  I really appreciate your being here and your

         21  good spirit and your good humor.  And as Bill said,

         22  your sensitivity to the Asian Lunar New Year and to

         23  Ash Wednesday is greatly appreciated.

         24                 I was going to try to carry the ball

         25  a little bit on Ash Wednesday, but I think you did a
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          2  great job.  So, I thank you for that, and I thank

          3  you in advance for all of the good things that we

          4  will try to work on together.  And thank you, on

          5  behalf, you know, Queens College student body for

          6  all you do, it is wonderful to work with you.

          7                 I would also like to mention, for the

          8  record, that my daughter was born on Purim in 1995,

          9  so, you know, I have got a special connection with

         10  this holiday.  And I thought it would be nice to see

         11  that on the record some day, that somewhere it is

         12  going to show up.

         13                 So thank you, Mr. Chairman, thank you

         14  members of the Committee, thank you other Council

         15  members, and to the witnesses and to everyone here

         16  today.  It is a good day, thank you all very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you,

         18  gentlemen for coming down this morning to testify.

         19  Is there any other member of the public who wishes

         20  to testify on Intro. 37?  Any comments or questions

         21  from Committee members?

         22                 I would like to, at this time, ask

         23  the indulgence of the members of this Committee, and

         24  call for a vote on Intro. 37, immediately.  Will the

         25  clerk please call the roll?
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Liu.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Addabbo.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Martinez.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sanders.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Lanza.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Aye.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And I will ask the

         15  clerk to hold the roll open so that the members who

         16  are in the other Committee meetings at this time can

         17  return to cast their vote on this issue.

         18                 Thank you every body for your

         19  patience thus far.  We have one last item on this

         20  morning's agenda.  It is a very important matter, it

         21  is Resolution, Preconsidered Resolution 100- A,

         22  which pertains to the, which calls for the

         23  appropriate Committee of Congress to have a hearing

         24  on exactly what happened with Flight 587.

         25                 Council Member Miguel Martinez has
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          2  held this issue to be of utmost importance, and at

          3  this time, I would like to ask Council Member

          4  Martinez to offer his comments on this resolution.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chair and members of the Committee for

          7  supporting the Resolution that was presented in

          8  which we are calling for Congress to intervene and

          9  to monitor oversight the process of the

         10  investigation of the National Transportation Safety

         11  Board, that in my opinion, has acted irresponsibly

         12  in making statement as to the cause of the accident

         13  of Flight 587, which you know happened in November.

         14  We are on our 7- month since the accident, since the

         15  terrible incident in which over 200 lives were lost.

         16                 It is important that the City of New

         17  York makes the statement that Congress needs to

         18  intervene in reference to the safety of the

         19  aircraft.  We must make sure before any other

         20  flights using, or a company using these aircraft

         21  continue to fly that they are safe enough to

         22  transport the citizens to their destination.

         23                 And at this point, Mr. Chair, it is

         24  extremely important since the National

         25  Transportation Board, since day one, has been making
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          2  statements as to the possible cause without being

          3  responsible enough to coming to the site of the

          4  crash.  I think that the statement we are making

          5  here as a City Council and the City of New York is

          6  that they need to act more responsible, they need to

          7  take under consideration the family members, not

          8  only of the passengers, but also the crew members

          9  that for some reason or another, as you know,

         10  before, the beginning it was caused by turbulence,

         11  then a statement came out that it was caused by

         12  pilot error, now we are hearing that, again, they

         13  are saying that possible pilot error may have

         14  contributed to it.  We want to get to the bottom of

         15  it, we want Congress to intervene, and we want

         16  Congress in the long- term to have some oversight as

         17  to how these investigations are being conducted.

         18                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         20  Member Martinez.  This resolution does call upon the

         21  United States Congress to hold hearings on the

         22  safety of the Airbus A- 300, 600, other aircraft,

         23  and the adequacy of pilot training programs.  This

         24  resolution was introduced in response to the tragic

         25  crash last November of American Airlines Flight 587
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          2  in Belle Harbor, New York. The aircraft was

          3  manufactured by Airbus, and an extensive

          4  investigation into its safety is ongoing by the

          5  Federal Government's National Transportation Safety

          6  Board.

          7                 Speculation on the cause of the crash

          8  has ranged from structural defects in the aircraft's

          9  rudder and tail fin, to malfunction of the

         10  aircraft's electrical system, to pilot error.

         11  Accurate findings explaining the cause of the crash

         12  are critical to ensuring that such a tragedy is not

         13  repeated.

         14                 And I want to thank Council Member

         15  Martinez's leadership in bringing this resolution to

         16  the attention of the City Council.  And I know we

         17  have a number of witnesses.  Once again, I would

         18  like to thank you for your patience this morning.

         19  It has been a long hearing, but we are going to

         20  address this issue now, and hope to gain more

         21  insight into exactly what happened and what has been

         22  occurring since the crash, in terms of the

         23  investigation and how it has been conducted.

         24                 I would like to call the first

         25  witness, Victor Trombettas from US Read and The
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          2  Wave.  Mr. Trombettas.

          3                 MR. TROMBETTAS:  Good morning,

          4  Council members.  I am a technology guru, and I

          5  forgot to press the button.

          6                 Thank you for this opportunity, thank

          7  you for addressing this issue.  This is a painful

          8  issue, obviously, for all the family members who

          9  were affected by this.  And it has also been a

         10  painful issue for a lot of the eyewitnesses who

         11  witnessed this horrific event, and a frustrating

         12  issue for them as well.

         13                 First of all, I would like to thank

         14  some of the people who have joined me here today to

         15  testify.  I do not know if we are going to have the

         16  time to hear all of them.  I certainly want to get

         17  to the two people right behind me.  The first

         18  gentleman is Dr. Vernon Grose, a former NTSB Board

         19  member, who will talk to us about the NTSB, and some

         20  of his concerns.  And I thank him for going public

         21  and for coming here today.  He is an established

         22  scientist, very respected, he is not just a

         23  politician.

         24                 I would also like to thank Todd

         25  Wissing, who is a Airbus A- 300 pilot who is here.
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          2  They have been, he has been at the forefront of a

          3  group of Airbus pilots that sent a 68 or 73- page

          4  report to the FAA and the NTSB highlighting their

          5  concerns about the Airbus A- 300 and about the

          6  investigation.  And more importantly the ongoing

          7  safety regimes for ensuring the safety and the

          8  integrity of the aircraft.

          9                 I would also like to thank Tom Lynch,

         10  who is an eyewitness, John Power for coming here

         11  today.  These gentlemen have not been out for public

         12  attention, none of us are writing any books, none of

         13  us are making any money, including myself, even

         14  though I am a journalist, part- time.  I have

         15  refused and rejected any offers for money, because I

         16  think I want to stay above reproach on this.

         17                 That said, given the fact that we got

         18  started so late here, I am going to skip some of my

         19  notes.  I do not think you are concerned about why I

         20  got involved in this story, so I will just get into

         21  some of the facts.  If you have a question about my

         22  involvement, I will certainly answer that after my

         23  statement.

         24                 I will say that I got involved, just

         25  very quickly, because Chairman Blakey's comments the
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          2  day of the crash.  That morning, when the fires were

          3  still smoldering, the cockpit and the flight data

          4  recorders had yet to be recovered, and many of the

          5  eyewitness testimonies or statements that had hit

          6  the media that morning, talked of fire, heavy smoke,

          7  explosive flashes, all coming from the body of the

          8  plane, before debris came off.  And I remember being

          9  at work that morning and listening to Fire, and by

         10  the way, Tom Lynch is a retired firefighter, as many

         11  of these witnesses are professionals or retired

         12  police officers, or former military people.

         13                 I remember listening to Tom on the

         14  radio, and he was adamant, he was frustrated, he

         15  said, let me tell you something, I am a firefighter,

         16  I know what I saw, this plane had two explosions

         17  before any large pieces started to separate from

         18  this plane.  I heard that.

         19                 And then I heard Marian Blakey, the

         20  Chairman of the NTSB say, that all indications are

         21  that this is an accident.  And I think to myself,

         22  this is an objective investigative agency, how can

         23  they make a statement like that before they even

         24  really begun an investigation?  So that worried me,

         25  and that got me involved in this story.
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          2                 And let me just say that when I first

          3  got involved without a doubt, I thought terrorism

          4  was clearly what happened here.  And today, I

          5  believe more that what we have is a catastrophic

          6  failure of something on board that plane.  However,

          7  I cannot rule out terrorism, I have tried to put

          8  that issue to bed, and I just cannot.  And I will

          9  outline shortly some of the reasons why I cannot put

         10  that to bed yet, although, I would like to.

         11                 The other reason I got involved is

         12  because I do have a lack of confidence in the NTSB's

         13  ability to always get it right. And I am not going

         14  to go to the details of this crash, perhaps, Dr.

         15  Grose would like to address in more detail, but

         16  Flight 800, which also crashed off the shores of

         17  Long Island back in 1996 raised many doubts in the

         18  public's mind, and there are millions of Americans,

         19  and very distinguished people who to this day

         20  believe that the truth has been subverted in that

         21  case, and one of those people is Dr. Vernon Grose.

         22                 Another gentleman who feels that the

         23  truth was subverted in that case is Admiral Thomas

         24  Moore, a former Chairman of the Joint Chief of

         25  Staff.  Brigadier Generals, military people, pilots,
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          2  engineers, aerospace gentlemen, and probably ladies,

          3  who feel that something is amidst with that

          4  investigation.

          5                 And as a New Yorker, I just followed

          6  it as an interest, and was very concerned about that

          7  investigation.  And I should point out one thing,

          8  the unfortunate thing here is that to some degree

          9  the NTSB is on trial here.  And it is unfortunate

         10  when the public does not have faith and trust in

         11  their government agencies.  And there is a lot of

         12  doubt out there.  And I will give you one small

         13  example related to Flight 800 that has influenced me

         14  and others to worry about this investigation

         15                 With Flight 800, I am sure you all

         16  knew that there were hundreds of witnesses who said

         17  they saw a missile or something like a missile

         18  ascend to the airplane.  The CIA, the FBI, and the

         19  NTSB addressed that by coming up with a theory that

         20  the nose of the plane came off, which is a fact, it

         21  did.  But that after the nose came off, this plane

         22  beautifully and straightly ascended three to four

         23  thousand feet without a nose, and that that streak

         24  was what the witnesses saw.

         25                 I have spoken to former NTSB Board
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          2  members, to former NTSB investigators, to families

          3  of FBI agents who have worked on that case, and they

          4  all say two very important words, that is an

          5  aerodynamic impossibility.  If you take a 747 and

          6  chop off its nose, the center of gravity will shift

          7  so severely that the plane will up beyond 20

          8  degrees, the engines will immediately stall and

          9  flame out, and that plane will ascend maybe 200 feet

         10  and then fall.  And our government, basically,

         11  dismissed all of the hundreds eyewitness statements

         12  about something streaking up to the airplane, by

         13  coming up with this theory that many NTSB

         14  investigators who were within the NTSB at that time,

         15  did not have a chance to look at the theory and the

         16  data and the calculations behind that.

         17                 And I will end this point with this

         18  fact, Captain Ray Lars, a retired airline pilot, who

         19  is currently in the courts with his own money, his

         20  own time, suing the NTSB for the calculations that

         21  they used to come up with that theory.  The

         22  Department of Justice has sent lawyers to defend the

         23  NTSB's right to refuse to release that data.

         24                 My tax money is being used to allow

         25  the NTSB to refuse to release that information.
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          2  That is appalling.  What is so secretive about us

          3  seeing that data, and unfortunately, that is part

          4  that and the Chairman's statements on the day of the

          5  crash made me very skeptical.

          6                 A former NTSB investigator, although

          7  I cannot tell you his name because he collects

          8  pension or whatever, and if he goes public he is

          9  afraid he will lose all of that.  He has shared with

         10  me many stories of how, unfortunately, politics has

         11  influenced many accident investigations.  And these

         12  were rather small accident investigations dealing

         13  with manufacturers that are not on the same level as

         14  Airbus, which is the number one manufacturer in the

         15  world right now.  He is a very frustrated gentleman,

         16  and he says there are a lot of frustrated, wonderful

         17  investigators and former investigators within the

         18  NTSB or who worked in the NTSB.  And he has had an

         19  impact on my desire to keep looking into this, to

         20  keep scrutinizing, to keep wondering if we have

         21  everything.

         22                 And let me just add, I know that this

         23  Council wants to go to Congress and request the

         24  proper oversight.  And I certainly endorse that

         25  effort.  I think we need to have more questions
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          2  asked and to have more information released to the

          3  public.  This NTSB investigator feels that the NTSB

          4  needs more brain power.  Most of the seasoned

          5  investigators at the NTSB are gone, and they have a

          6  lot of new people there, they need brain power.  But

          7  he also feels that the NTSB needs to be de-

          8  politicized once again.  And that would mean making

          9  sure that the Board members are not political

         10  appointees, he feels that has hurt and crippled the

         11  NTSB.

         12                 I understand that you are looking for

         13  answers.  And in all fairness to the NTSB, ten

         14  months is not enough time for them to produce

         15  probable cause to determine what happened to this

         16  airplane.  If by answers you mean data and factual

         17  information, I totally support that.  That has been

         18  part of my frustration as a writer and a reporter

         19  where I have asked the NTSB and others have asked

         20  for basic information, the weather data that day,

         21  radar data, the timeline, the cockpit voice recorder

         22  and flight data recorder transcripts, none of that

         23  is forthcoming.  In fact, the NTSB has gone to the

         24  point where they will not even discuss the

         25  information that they released in November.  In
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          2  November they released a certain timeline for the

          3  cockpit voice recorder and the flight data recorder,

          4  and they do not even want to talk about that

          5  anymore.  So why the secrecy, why the refusal to

          6  talk about anything?

          7                 I understand that the second issue

          8  that you are worried about is safety of the Airbus

          9  A- 300, and I can say there is good reason to be

         10  concerned about that, and I am going to let Todd

         11  Wissing address that.  And the Vanity Fair Article,

         12  I do not know if you folks have seen, talked about

         13  that at length, as well.

         14                 I mentioned terrorism and the fact

         15  that I could not put it to bed yet.  Though I feel

         16  that that is as less of a possibility than I did

         17  back on November 12th, some of the reasons why I

         18  cannot put it to bed is:

         19                 1.  It was the Veterans Day holiday.

         20  And the Federal government had received a very

         21  specific threat to Veterans Day that weekend.  It

         22  was American Airlines.  American Airlines was a

         23  target on September 11th, and was also a target in

         24  December of 2001, less than 40 days after the crash

         25  of Flight 587, when Richard Reed try to light or
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          2  ignite his shoes with the explosives that were

          3  contained therein.  This happened in New York City,

          4  not Des Moines, Iowa.  New York, as we know very

          5  intimately, is a target for terrorism.

          6                 The UN General Assembly was in

          7  session.  And then there is all the troubling

          8  witness statements of fires and explosions and heavy

          9  smoke prior to the separation of large control

         10  surfaces on that airplane.

         11                 I am sure you also heard about the

         12  Daily News investigation that was conducted just a

         13  few days ago, or they announced it just yesterday.

         14  That they went to, I believe, 11 different airports

         15  and were able to successfully smuggle on board 14

         16  different weapons or things that could be used as

         17  weapons, not one of those was caught.  So certainly

         18  from the safety of the Airbus A- 300 there are

         19  reasons to be concerned.  And we are also still

         20  concerned about aviation security.

         21                 And the point I am trying to make is

         22  this is one reason why I cannot put terrorism to

         23  bed.  I am not sure that after September 11th,

         24  safety and security is where it should be.

         25                 I do not want to sound arrogant
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          2  today.  I do not known what brought down Flight 587,

          3  but what I can tell you is that the story that has

          4  emerged from the NTSB, I have serious doubts about

          5  and so do many people.  And Council Member Martinez,

          6  you mentioned wake turbulence and pilot error.  The

          7  NTSB will defend themselves and say, well we have

          8  not said what the cause was.  That is true, but they

          9  have allowed a message to leak out, they have put it

         10  out sublimely, and that is wake turbulence and pilot

         11  over control.  The pilot got spooked by the wake

         12  turbulence and over the controlled the rudder in

         13  such a bazaar manner that most pilots find hard to

         14  believe, and broke the plane.  I find that very hard

         15  to believe.  And more importantly, scrutinizing the

         16  data that the NTSB has released to date, simply

         17  paints a completely different picture.

         18                 And by that, let me say this, the

         19  NTSB talked about wake turbulence.  The weather data

         20  that morning has not been released by the NTSB to

         21  substantiate the belief that the wake from the 747

         22  that took off before 587 had enough time and that

         23  there was a sufficient wind to blow it into the path

         24  of Flight 587.  I have asked the NTSB for the

         25  weather data, that is a national security secret,
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          2  they will not release it yet.

          3                 The radar data I was able to get from

          4  an independent radar company out on Long Island

          5  called Mega Data, one of the world's most respected

          6  radar companies, and they sell radar data back to

          7  the airlines.  They released the radar data for the

          8  747 and Flight 587.  And when I drew up the map with

          9  the coordinates for the two planes and we took the

         10  known weather conditions that morning that were

         11  taken out at Brookhaven, Long Island, there is no

         12  way that that wake turbulence made it over from the

         13  747 to Flight 587.  So if it was not wake turbulence

         14  that moved that aircraft, what did?

         15                 Then there is the issue of pilot over

         16  control responding to that wake turbulence.  The

         17  timeline that I asked the NTSB for, I was able to

         18  assemble just by looking at the data they released

         19  back in November, and the important thing here is

         20  that that data shows that the pilots were struggling

         21  with something fiercely, they were concerned about

         22  the safety of the plane before the second and more

         23  deadly wake encounter.  Now if it was not wake

         24  turbulence that he was responding to, what was he

         25  responding to? That is a huge question.
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          2                 Back in February I brought to the

          3  NTSB to their attention that there own data showed

          4  that this plane was in trouble before the second

          5  wake encounter, they had failed to even respond to

          6  one of my questions.

          7                 I want to, I apologize for the

          8  lengthy introduction here, and I am going to cut it

          9  short.  I am going to let Dr. Vernon Grose come up

         10  and speak.  I thank you for your time, I endorse

         11  your efforts.  And if you have any further question,

         12  I am available to answer them.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

         14  Trombettas for your time this morning.  Council

         15  Member Addabbo has a question for Mr. Trombettas.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chair.  More of a statement.  I represent the

         18  area of Belle Harbor where it was the final site of

         19  Flight 587, and I am a proud prime sponsor of this

         20  bill, and I have got to thank my colleague, Miguel

         21  Martinez and this Committee for starting the ball

         22  rolling on this investigation.

         23                 I am concerned that all possible

         24  reasons for Flight 587 have not been taken into

         25  consideration.  You know, not only the conditions of
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          2  the actual takeoff conditions should be examined,

          3  but also the maintenance of these Airbus, the plane,

          4  and also the electronic conditions of the plane

          5  should be considered as well, not just the takeoff

          6  conditions.

          7                 The residents of Rockaway are still

          8  plagued by plane flight overhead, and they are still

          9  living in fear.  And why, because it is the

         10  maintenance and the safety of these planes that are

         11  a major factor.  Now I know plane flights is an FAA

         12  issue, but the maintenance of these planes that fly

         13  overhead that is something that needs to be looked

         14  at.  And I think that is what this resolution will

         15  help to do.

         16                 Maybe, just maybe, we should not just

         17  consider the takeoff conditions, but maybe look at

         18  everything, cross every "t," dot every "i" to make

         19  sure that all possibilities of Flight 587 have been

         20  examined at least.

         21                 I also have a concern that NTSB has

         22  not, or has been reluctant, at least, to take into

         23  consideration testimony from eyewitnesses who have

         24  seen what happened to Flight 587, many, many people

         25  were eyewitnesses that day, unfortunately, have the
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          2  same story.  There story does not deviate much, and

          3  these people should be, these residents who saw the

          4  flight should be taken into consideration, and there

          5  is a reluctance upon NTSB to do so, and I have a

          6  concern with that.

          7                 I think this is what the residents

          8  deserve, I think this is what every passenger of

          9  every flight that flies out of any of our airports

         10  deserve.  And I think, again, this resolution puts

         11  forward that progress to hopefully get that

         12  resolved.

         13                 And I also have got to commend a

         14  former colleague in the City Council, now a

         15  Congressman, Anthony Wiener, who is pushing this on

         16  the Federal level.  But I think this is a great step

         17  forward, and again, I am proud prime sponsor, and I

         18  thank my colleague as well.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         21  Member Addabbo. Any other questions?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chair.  Mr. Trombettas, when you mentioned that

         24  when the National Safety Transportation Board made

         25  the first statement that it was an accident.  You
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          2  are saying that that statement was made without the

          3  Board actually being in New York City or

          4  representative of the Board?

          5                 MR. TROMBETTAS:  I am not 100 percent

          6  sure where Marian Blakey was when she made that

          7  statement.  I will take the safe answer, and that

          8  would be, she was in New York, but the bottom line

          9  is the cockpit voice recorder had not been examined,

         10  neither the flight data recorder, which was picked

         11  up two days later, and they did not get an initial

         12  readout from that until Wednesday or Thursday, and

         13  the crash occurred on Monday.

         14                 So, Dr. Vernon Grose can speak to

         15  that point better. He too was shocked by her

         16  comment, and I do not want to belabor that same

         17  point again and again.

         18                 But just to address what Council

         19  Member Addabbo said just a moment ago about the

         20  witnesses, the NTSB sent a questionnaire with five

         21  questions to the witnesses, and they have never

         22  returned to interview these people one- on- one at

         23  the spots where they witnessed the crash.  How can

         24  you have an investigation that looks at every angle

         25  to a crime or an accident, and not interview
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          2  eyewitnesses?

          3                 Jim Conrad, who is a retired police

          4  lieutenant and was a witness to this horrific event,

          5  is absolutely dismayed.  He saw the same thing that

          6  eyewitness Tom Lynch saw, two explosions and the

          7  plane engulfed in flames and fire.  And he says, in

          8  all my years as a cop, we would never look at a

          9  crime and say, let's just look at the forensic data

         10  and let's forget the eyewitnesses because they are

         11   "unreliable."  But the NTSB says they are

         12  unreliable, 182 people saw fire, smoke, or

         13  explosions, let's just forget about it. And the New

         14  York Times did them quite a favor by writing a story

         15  that supported that thesis.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

         17  Trombettas for your time this morning.  I would like

         18  to call Dr. Vernon Grose to testify.  Immediately

         19  after Dr. Grose testifies, we will have a panel of

         20  two witnesses, Mr. Todd Wissing and Stanley Molin,

         21  so if you could, the two of you gentlemen could

         22  prepare to testify immediately after Dr. Grose.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 Good morning, or at this point, I

         25  think it is two minutes into the afternoon.  Good
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          2  afternoon, Dr. Grose.

          3                 DR. GROSE:  Thank you, Chairman Liu,

          4  and it is a pleasure to be here.  And certainly I am

          5  concerned about this, having come up this morning

          6  from Washington, D.C., where I live.

          7                 There are several issues that are in

          8  your resolution that I would like to address.  One,

          9  of course, is about the NTSB's role, and I think

         10  were they doing there job that they were

         11  commissioned to do by the Congress in 1967, there

         12  would be no need for this meeting today.

         13                 The history of the NTSB as it was

         14  founded in 1967 by the Congress to be an objective

         15  body that was devoted to finding causation of

         16  accidents and what to do about them so that they

         17  would never occur again.  The history for that,

         18  founding them was that before that the Civil

         19  Aeronautics Administration judged their own

         20  accidents, in other words, they controlled their

         21  traffic control system, they regulated the aircraft,

         22  they regulated the airlines, and therefore, when

         23  there was an accident they could not be objective.

         24  So the idea was to form this independent body.

         25                 The NTSB is formed of five members,
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          2  all appointed by the White House, and a staff of

          3  about 400 people who are specialists in various

          4  aspects.

          5                 In 1996, something happened in this

          6  country to the NTSB, it began to be politicized.  It

          7  started with the Value Jet 592 crash in the

          8  Everglades in 1996 and followed almost immediately

          9  by TWA 800, which has already been mentioned.  I

         10  gave 170 interviews on TWA 800, and I am pretty

         11  familiar with that accident, politics began to enter

         12  into the investigatory process.  And it has been a

         13  sad story almost since then, and it is compounded by

         14  what has happened by American 587 as far as I am

         15  concerned.

         16                 A Marian Blakey, the Chairperson of

         17  the NTSB had just been named shortly before 587 went

         18  down.  She was not familiar apparently with the

         19  modest operandi for the NTSB, and she had never been

         20  on an accident scene herself.  And normally when you

         21  first come on the Board, you go with another Board

         22  member to the scene of an accident or to learn how

         23  this is to be done.  Well the fact is, without

         24  knowing that, she was accosted by the press,

         25  perhaps, and she made this statement without having
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          2  left Washington or the Gold Team that normally

          3  should be airborne in two hours to the scene had not

          4  been dispatched.  So they had zero evidence, apart

          5  from press reports about the accident, yet, she made

          6  the statement that all evidence points to this being

          7  an accident, not terrorism.  It is the most

          8  inappropriate statement any NTSB member could ever

          9  make.

         10                 The idea of the NTSB is to go to the

         11  scene, dispatch a team, and generally there at 10 or

         12  12 different groups, one of which is an eyewitness

         13  group.  I am rather shocked that that eyewitness

         14  group has not functioned apparently, from the

         15  testimony I have heard of other eyewitnesses to this

         16  accident, but normally that is the job of the

         17  eyewitness group to take all the evidence of

         18  eyewitnesses.  And we know that eyewitnesses will

         19  vary, because everybody sees an accident slightly

         20  differently.  But the fact when you have got a

         21  preponderance of a large number of witnesses to the

         22  accident, there is a commonality to them.  And the

         23  commonality in this particular case is that there

         24  was evidently fire of some type on the starboard

         25  side of the aircraft after the wing.  And we have

                                                            74

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  witnesses here today that saw that.

          3                 So the Board is supposed to be

          4  politically nonpartisan and it must never have more

          5  than three members of one party, so you could have

          6  three of one and two of the other.  It cannot avoid

          7  a possibility of some politics, because to be

          8  appointed by the President of the United States, you

          9  have to have some political connection.  But

         10  nonetheless, the Board is never functioned in a

         11  political way, until 1996, in my opinion.

         12                 Now the issue here that I commend the

         13  City Council in attacking is that America is based

         14  on an informed electorate. And if the electorate is

         15  improperly informed, if they are deceived, if they

         16  are patronized, if they are anesthetized of

         17  whatever, even if it was to kind of take away the

         18  idea it might be more terror here, and that was, of

         19  course, the mood in Washington on the day of the

         20  accident.  I was on Fox Network five minutes after

         21  587 went down.  It was full of misinformation  The

         22  first people at Fox called me and said, a 767 was

         23  landing at LaGuardia and had crashed. Well it was an

         24  error in three ways, it was not a 767, it was not

         25  going to LaGuardia, and it was not landing, it was
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          2  taking off.

          3                 So those kinds of things happen

          4  initially.  But the whole idea is to gradually come

          5  to the truth, and you find that in a lot of ways.

          6  We cannot fault the NTSB today for not giving us

          7  probablecause yet, because that does generally take

          8  up to a year.

          9                 The issue that we are really

         10  concerned about, and I as a former member of the

         11  NTSB, are particularly concerned about is the

         12  statement by the Chairperson that declared it to be

         13  an accident before they ever been on the scene, and

         14  that of course, put them in a lose/lose position.

         15  If it turns out to be an accident, then it will look

         16  like the NTSB forced that decision.  If it turns out

         17  to be other than an accident, it shows the

         18  inappropriateness of the decision.

         19                 So I do not want to take anymore time

         20  today, either, but I would say that the NTSB is in

         21  great danger right now of working backward toward

         22  the answer they decided the day the airplane

         23  crashed.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Dr.

         25  Grose.  Are there any questions?  Thank you for your
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          2  time and for traveling a great distance to

          3  participate in our public hearing today.

          4                 DR. GROSE:  You're welcome.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I would like to ask

          6  Todd Wissing and Stanley Molin to come up to the

          7  witness table to present your testimony?  And while

          8  they are doing that, I would like to call the next

          9  panel comprised of Brett Landsman and Thomas Lynch.

         10  Mr. Wissing.

         11                 MR. WISSING:  Thank you, Mr. Liu and

         12  the rest of the Council.  I am here today as a,

         13  basically, to give you a pilot's perspective on this

         14  accident, if that is what the NTSB truly determines

         15  it to be.  As an A- 300 pilot for the company

         16  involved, I want to make it clear that I am not

         17  speaking for the company, I am speaking as a pilot

         18  who is charge by the Federal Aviation Regulations to

         19  express my concerns in any safety related matter

         20  that comes up, and that is also, of course, our

         21  company policy. And that is why myself and some

         22  other A- 300 pilots wrote a letter to the NTSB and

         23  the FAA expressing some concerns that we had, not

         24  only about the A- 300, but more to the point of the

         25  safety recommendation issued on February 8th of this

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  year in regard to the accident.

          3                 We were, of course, concerned by the

          4  nature of the public comments made by the NTSB, the

          5  press conferences at the site struck me as a little

          6  bit odd since I remembered back in Little Rock in

          7  1999 when my company had an airplane have an

          8  accident there, the next day they conducted a press

          9  conference, and they were admonished severely by the

         10  NTSB for commenting on an ongoing accident.  And so

         11  I was taken aback by the way the NTSB in this case

         12  not only conducted press conferences from the site,

         13  but also one on Meet the Press or one of the morning

         14  news shows within six days of the accident, with

         15  charts and graphs, basically, speculating about the

         16  role of wake turbulence, and other matters, it was

         17  pretty obvious to all that they did not have the

         18  full information on it.

         19                 In our letter to the NTSB, and I will

         20  not go into any of the other issues that have been

         21  raised here today, because as pilots we want to

         22  focus directly on the issues that affect us and that

         23  we have personal knowledge of, and that is, what the

         24  Federal Aviation Regulations require of us, what we

         25  expect of our aircraft, what we expect of the NTSB
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          2  and the FAA.

          3                 In this case, we had always assumed

          4  that when an airplane of the nature of a large

          5  commercial jet, whether it was due to fatigue or in

          6  flight upset or some other in flight event that

          7  something more than a visual inspection of the tail

          8  or of a wing or other parts would be conducted.  We

          9  did some investigation, we came up with a broad

         10  range of experts in the field, non destructive

         11  testing and composite materials, who supported that

         12  feeling on our behalf, and we, ourselves, have

         13  become somewhat layman experts, if you will, on the

         14  field of composites just from having talked to so

         15  many of them.  That case has been pretty well

         16  documented by experts from MIT, from NASA, from the

         17  United States Air Force, all which back non-

         18  destructive testing.  And that point, especially has

         19  significant impact to the future as the airplanes

         20  that they are building now, the Airbus 380, for

         21  example, the Boeing Sonic Cruiser, are over 60

         22  percent composite material, including composite wing

         23  boxes.

         24                 The second issue is structural

         25  certification requirements for the rudder and
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          2  vertical stabilizer for all commercial aircraft.

          3  After the NTSB statement, we thought that that was

          4  an inadequate expectation.  That the certification

          5  standards would allow, as they said, something of

          6  that nature to occur, and we wanted more re-

          7  evaluation on that, especially where it concerned

          8  metal tails versus composite tails.

          9                 As pilots who has experienced the

         10  airplane, a lot of our pilots were concerned about

         11  documented rudder movements on the A- 300, which

         12  were not caused by pilots, and in fact, if you look

         13  back through all the documentation, you cannot find

         14  a time when a pilot over controlled the rudder on an

         15  A- 300.  Although, we do have over 20, maybe even 30

         16  documented cases of the rudder moving on its own.  I

         17  know of one case in 1999 in Miami, the rudder moved

         18  12 degrees left and right, nearly resulting in the

         19  loss of the airplane.  A special emergency procedure

         20  was issued for that.

         21                 So it struck us that when the NTSB

         22  issued instruction about or warnings about pilot

         23  trainings versus certification standards, why

         24  wouldn't you look at uncommanded rudder rather than

         25  look at possible pilot actions?
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          2                 We note that NASA has conducted a

          3  study and printed a report on the immature use of

          4  low bearing structures made of composite material.

          5                 The rudder limiters, what pilots

          6  expect versus certification standards was one of the

          7  main points.  Of course, we are concerned about

          8  pilot training, if they are going to change the way

          9  that they are going to define certain things such as

         10  maneuvering air speed, which is a basic truth that

         11  we have always learned, they need to come up with

         12  better training.  We are still unconvinced that

         13  every word that they are saying is true, but if that

         14  is the case, the training needs to be looked at.

         15                 A couple of things come to mind.  For

         16  eight years since the crash of Flight 585, the

         17  United Airlines in 1991 in Colorado Springs.  It is

         18  a Boeing 737, for eight years through the crash of

         19  the U.S. Airforic 27 in 1994, Boeing and Parker

         20  Hannifen tried to convince the courts public opinion

         21  that those crashes were caused by, and I will quote

         22  from an article on June 29th, "Pilot over reacted

         23  from wake vortex pressed rudder peddles the wrong

         24  way."  That is what their lawyer, Boeing and Parker

         25  Hannifen, the maker of a rudder part were arguing in
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          2  court on June 29th, 2002. The judge decided that

          3  Boeing was 25 percent liable for that incident, and

          4  Parker Hannifen, the maker of the rudder part was 75

          5  percent liable.  The lawyer for Parker Hannifen,

          6  after the case was over, told the press, I have no

          7  interest in saying anything bad about the pilots, in

          8  a courtroom I have to defend my client.

          9                 So as pilots, we have to be weary of

         10  the fact, and it seems pretty plain, that sometimes

         11  to avoid liability manufacturers may try to

         12  implicate pilots wrongly for things that have

         13  happened on airplanes.  And I think that case is a

         14  defining issue.

         15                 Another point I would like to point

         16  out, NTSB said that this accident with the rudder

         17  movements resulting in the tail coming off, could

         18  have happened to any airplane, Airbus or Boeing, or

         19  whatever.  On the 28th of July, the Los Angeles

         20  Times quoted three separate Boeing sources as saying

         21  that under the same forces the Boeing 767 would not

         22  have, the tail would not have broken.

         23                 Finally, a fellow pilot of mine

         24  points this out regarding wake turbulence.  He says,

         25  if you consider all of the places where aircraft
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          2  take off that are behind other aircraft, and you

          3  consider that these airplanes have been taking off

          4  one behind the other for 50 years, the large

          5  commercial airplanes, and you consider that Kennedy

          6  Airport is probably one of the best airports in the

          7  world with the utmost highly trained air traffic

          8  controllers, tower controllers and pilots flying

          9  into and out of that airport.  And then you consider

         10  what is being speculated here about over control in

         11  reaction to a wake turbulence event that is likely

         12  felt a lot by a pilots, and I certainly have felt it

         13  many times.  If you consider what we are being asked

         14  to believe, that these pilots miscontrolled this

         15  airplane and caused structural damage to an

         16  airplane, and go back 50 years where it has never

         17  happened before.  It seems to us they still need to

         18  do some work.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

         20  Molin.

         21                 MR. MOLIN:  My son was at the Flight

         22  Controls of 587.  He was the co- pilot, and talking

         23  about over control, et cetera, they are talking

         24  about my son.  And certainly, by innuendo most of

         25  the things the NTSB is releasing is implicating my
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          2  son as, perhaps, the primary cause of this accident

          3  in over reacting.

          4                 Perhaps to give myself some

          5  credibility I will tell you that I was 70 years old

          6  two days ago, and that I have been flying for 53

          7  years, since I first soloed as a teenager.  I have a

          8  degree in psychology, I was an educator in the

          9  Buffalo Public Schools, I taught Science in high

         10  school for eight years.  At the same time I was

         11  teaching flying.  I became an airline pilot in the

         12  mid- 1960s, and I flew and retired as an airline

         13  captain.  I did over a quarter of a century for a

         14  major airline flying out of New York.

         15                 Now in regard to my son, I taught him

         16  to fly when he was a teenager.  I soloed him, I

         17  mentored him for his whole career. He was an

         18  unusually good pilot.  He was so good that I, in

         19  spite of my own pride and my own abilities to be a

         20  super pilot, I had no qualms about telling him, my

         21  friends and his friends, that he was a better pilot

         22  than I was.  He was truly exceptional.  It certainly

         23  was his passion, he was extremely prideful.  I think

         24  he enjoyed an excellent reputation with his fellow

         25  pilots.
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          2                 I, immediately after this crash, I

          3  had contact with Chief Pilot American Airlines that

          4  told me he was dead, and we talked briefly about my

          5  son and he told me things that I had never heard

          6  about his fellow pilots feelings or attitudes.  One

          7  comment that I heard several times was that whenever

          8  I showed up for work and I saw Stan Molin's name as

          9  my co- pilot, I knew I was going to have a good day.

         10

         11                 I will say that I believe from what

         12  little evidence has been released by the NTSB and a

         13  lot of things that have been deduced by Mr. Victor

         14  Trombettas and reported on his web site at

         15  USRead.com, he constructed a timeline.   I know that

         16  the airline pilots' union that represent American

         17  Airlines, I think, Todd, himself, the gentleman to

         18  my left, reported that Victor was able to get radar

         19  data out of this respected company that the pilots'

         20  union and everybody else could not get any data,

         21  somehow he got them to release this data.

         22                 The feelings that I have about this

         23  crash, and I certainly do not know the cause of the

         24  crash either, but that to blame my son for these

         25  large rudder movements causing the crash is a bit
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          2  ludicrous.  I believe that a lot of bad things were

          3  happening on board that aircraft a long time before

          4  the rudder broke off, before the engines came off,

          5  and that the timeliness that we have, the many

          6  unexplained things we have.  And one of which I will

          7  mention is that the NTSB released the first week,

          8  that there was a lot of garbled transmissions that

          9  were unreadable at the time that the airplane was

         10  crashing.  We have released transcripts in the

         11  actual voice tapes from the FAA from the tower, the

         12  ground control, what they call a local control,

         13  tower talks to the airplane and tell them they are

         14  clear for takeoff, and then departure control where

         15  they have them on radar and they are getting further

         16  instructions.  On those tapes there is an

         17  interruption at one point of two short words.  The

         18  FAA interpreted those words as, nice game. Now I do

         19  not know who translated those words, but when I hear

         20  those words, and I played that tape for many of my

         21  friends, one of my friends was playing that, he is a

         22  current police lieutenant in Yonkers, and he was

         23  playing that.  He has known Stan, my son, for 20

         24  years, since he was 14 years old.  And he said, that

         25  is Stan, that is my son, Stan.  And from the other
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          2  room, his daughter says, try escape, she hears that

          3  for the first time from the other room as he is

          4  playing this tape, and it says, try escape.

          5                 Well it turns out that an escape

          6  maneuver is a somewhat of a desperation maneuver in

          7  the airline business where you say, screw the

          8  engines, I do not care what happens to them in the

          9  future, I am going to go for max temperature, max

         10  power, right now I need that extra power.

         11                 So I played that for many, many

         12  people who knew my son, and including one of his

         13  girlfriends that he talked to several times a day.

         14  Who he talked to 10 hours before he was killed, and

         15  she listened to that, and she said, where did they

         16  get this nice game from.  That is not only try

         17  escape, but that is Stan's voice. And she talked to

         18  him, as I say, 10 hours before he was killed.

         19                 The NTSB, the FAA just says that the

         20  source of this try escape or nice game is

         21  unidentified.  The best we can hear from the NTSB is

         22  that we have looked at the cockpit voice recorder

         23  and there is no try escape or nice game or anything

         24  like that that came from that airplane, nor was

         25  recorded on that airplane coming from the ground.
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          2  The timing is uncanny, the same time that it is on

          3  the FAA tapes, where we hear this interruption of

          4  try escape, is the same time that he is calling for

          5  max power approximately within seconds according to

          6  their report.  And by some very reliable sources who

          7  are experts in cockpit voice recorders, they say

          8  that it is highly probable that that came from 587.

          9                 And another indication, why is this

         10  important?  It is saying that airplane had a bunch

         11  of bad things happening on it, before this so-

         12  called second wake turbulence.  I would not be

         13  surprised that the first wake turbulence, the

         14  rattling and shaking of the fuselage was the tail,

         15  the rudder or the vertical fin was in trouble

         16  already.

         17                 I would like to point out that about

         18  the NTSB you are here to try to get a Congressional

         19  oversight or something of that sort.  I had a phone

         20  call from a reporter who is based in Washington, his

         21  name is Bill O'Dare, and he reports for the Saint

         22  Petersburg Times, he wanted to do a telephone

         23  interview.  I gave him a telephone interview and I

         24  told him, among other things, that I was, had an

         25  abiding faith in the NTSB for major part of this
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          2  century or last century, and that I was starting to

          3  have my doubts. When I start to hear of 150 people

          4  seeing fire and smoke coming from this airplane, and

          5  the NTSB is sort of not even giving them lip

          6  service.

          7                 I talked to this gentleman here, and

          8  when I heard his story as an eyewitness of the

          9  gyrations that this airplane went through, were just

         10  unbelievable, unbelievable.  And I started saying to

         11  myself, well now it is starting to show that there

         12  was a lot of bad things going on in that airplane, a

         13  lot of things happening.  And I do not know what

         14  they are, I do not know.  But I told Mr. O'Dare of

         15  the Saint Petersburg Times that I was sort of losing

         16  faith because of the way they were treating such a

         17  tremendous number of eyewitnesses.  It was a holiday

         18  morning, it was 9:15 in the morning, and people were

         19  doing leisure things. They were not just going to

         20  work.  The quality of these eyewitnesses, one of the

         21  gentlemen, 26 years with the Albany New York

         22  Legislature.

         23                 Let me say that two days after that I

         24  gave the telephone interview to Mr. O'Dare from the

         25  Saint Petersburg Times, and then I said something
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          2  about criticize the NTSB, said something about how

          3  they were treating the eyewitnesses.  Two days

          4  later, the NTSB released a bunch of eyewitness

          5  statistics.  Coincidence?  I challenged Mr. O'Dare,

          6  and he says, oh, I did not do that.  Two days after

          7  I talked to the man and criticized what they were

          8  doing with eyewitnesses.

          9                 I can also say about the way they did

         10  release these things to the press.  They released it

         11  in cold statistics, which is sort of their job at

         12  this point, I suppose, but it defamed the

         13  eyewitnesses, because it said 52 percent saw fire,

         14  and 26 reported seeing no fire.  Well certainly

         15  eyewitnesses are going to be contradictory because

         16  they see the airplane at different parts of its

         17  flight, they see it going one direction.  An

         18  eyewitness on the other side see it going from right

         19  to left, versus left to right. They discredit by the

         20  way they reported this that some witnesses saw it

         21  flying east and some saw it flying west.  Well the

         22  airplane did both, but that is not to discredit an

         23  eyewitness that he saw it flying east, some saw it

         24  flying east and west, are they wrong also?

         25                 Well, Todd Wissing, referred to some
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          2  of the, one of the things was a rudder limiter.  The

          3  first week I asked if the rudder limiter was

          4  working, and they said yes.  That is the NTSB said,

          5  yes, it was working.  It came out and turns out

          6  some, what I consider shocking numbers, it turns out

          7  that the NTSB was shocked to find how little

          8  pressure it took on the rudders to make them move.

          9  They flew the simulators that American Airlines felt

         10  that the ailerons were fairly heavy, that is the

         11  wheel going this way, and the elevators.  But the

         12  rudders as it turns out, numbers released by the

         13  Madam Chairwoman of the NTSB, that it takes 22

         14  pounds to get the rudder peddles to start moving.

         15  And that is so that an accidental brush of the

         16  peddles does not cause a movement of the rudder

         17  peddles.  A guy puts his foot up there and it does

         18  not cause the peddle to move.  But then it turns out

         19  that it only takes 10 pounds more pressure after you

         20  have got the break away force on the rudder peddle.

         21  It takes 32 pounds to keep it moving, and than at

         22  the speed that the airplane was at, how far do you

         23  think you have to push that rudder peddle to get the

         24  rudder to go full?  One and a third inches, at that

         25  speed gives full rudder deflection of approximately
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          2  9.3 or 10 degrees.

          3                 That means to get the rudder to go in

          4  the other direction, it only takes about two and a

          5  half inches of foot movement and the rudder peddle

          6  is gone fully the other way.  Now they tell us an

          7  Airbus, et cetera, says, ah, that is enough to break

          8  the tail off.  You have exceeded the design

          9  limitations of that tail.  One point three inches,

         10  and then two and a half or two point six inches on

         11  the other side, and you have exceeded the design

         12  limitations of the tail.

         13                 Well, I would say at this point we

         14  could go on for a quite a while, because I have

         15  taken 15 or 20 minutes, and I thank you for your

         16  time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Are

         18  there any questions for this panel of witnesses?

         19  Question from Council Member Martinez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  One thing,

         21  I just want to, as a pilot, how would you rate the

         22  safety of the Airbuses in general, of the aircraft?

         23                 MR. WISSING:  I have been asked that

         24  question as you can probably imagine quite a bit.

         25  And I am still a current A- 300 pilot, and I would
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          2  not fly the airplane if I thought it was unsafe. As

          3  I explained, our concerns are that we expect certain

          4  things to happen in the safety equation.

          5                 In the military we, you go to any

          6  military base, Navy or Air Force, Marines or Army,

          7  and literally written in stone is a phrase called

          8  safety is paramount.  And we have heard that since

          9  we were trained.  And so I would never fly an

         10  airplane that I knew was unsafe.  But the things

         11  that we expect to determine whether an airplane is

         12  safe or not, are what we are taking issue with in

         13  this case.

         14                 The issues I brought up, I want to

         15  point out again, some of them have to do with this

         16  airplane, but others have to do with the broad

         17  statements that the NTSB made on February 8th,

         18  because they were obviously speaking to the full

         19  range of large commercial airplanes, and that is - -

         20    One thing I did not mention is that, part of that

         21  broad spectrum of building a foundation for safety

         22  is that if you make a statement like that, you say,

         23  okay, this basic truth about aerodynamics is now

         24  what we thought it was, you guys are going to have

         25  to be retrained.  You expect that the next week some

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  sort of changes to happen in your manuals or in your

          3  procedures.  But they tell you that your rudder

          4  peddles are not working the way you always assumed,

          5  you expect some sort of an instruction or a check

          6  list coming out.  None of that happened, to the

          7  point where I even wrote a, what we call a NASA

          8  report, which is a safety report, and again, it is

          9  what we are charge to do as part of the FAR, the

         10  Federal Aviation Regulations. Because I noticed in

         11  one procedure that we had for the A- 300, when you

         12  have a landing gear that will not come down, the

         13  emergency procedure tells you to do alternating side

         14  slips.  Well, the only way you can do alternating

         15  side slips is to push the rudder back and forth,

         16  there are no warning about how much you should do,

         17  or cautions about how it could cause damage to the

         18  tail.

         19                 And month after their statement in

         20  February, in March, that statement was still in the

         21  book.  So it leads you down the road of

         22  certification.  If you certify the tail one way, how

         23  did you certify this procedure to go both ways?

         24                 So it is a complex question and what

         25  you asked.  And all we can do is keep pointing out
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          2  the things that we find inconsistent.

          3                 MR. MOLIN:  Can I, perhaps, add that

          4  as he spoke I am thinking about this rudder and

          5  rudder reversals.  I talked to an Airbus captain who

          6  flew with my son and had to this day the greatest

          7  respect for his ability.  Who speaks and spoke

          8  glowingly of his skills as a pilot.  One of those

          9  who said I am going to have a great day when I see

         10  Stan showing up for the trip.  We talked about this

         11  rudder reversal.  And he said that he had 6,000

         12  hours on the Airbus, 6,000 hours, that is about 10

         13  years of full- time flying that airplane.  And he

         14  said, I never heard about rudder reversals being a

         15  no- no.  I have heard it from any number of pilots

         16  when you refer to the Airbus flight manual.  It is a

         17  book about that thick, it is like a telephone book,

         18  and there is a section in there that it is marked

         19  with red tabs for emergencies, and another section

         20  with yellow tabs for precautions, do not do, nowhere

         21  in there does it say do not push the rudder full one

         22  way, and then push it full the other way.  Is that

         23  your understanding?

         24                 The book has not been rewritten, and

         25  yet, Marian Blakey, I believe it was in February,
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          2  said that this was enough to break the tail off.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  We have

          4  a question from Council Member Sears.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chairman.  I just have one question, and I thank you

          7  very much for your testimony, it is very

          8  enlightening.  Is there a universal standard of

          9  training and technical abilities for the maintenance

         10  of these Airbuses?  I know they are maintained in

         11  every part of the world, so is there a universal

         12  standard?

         13                 MR. WISSING:  For an aircraft to

         14  operate within the United States it has got to

         15  comply with the Federal Aviation Regulation

         16  Standards.  And some aircraft that are operated in

         17  other countries are not allowed to fly in the United

         18  States because they do not comply.  A recent example

         19  would be Land Peru, no, I am sorry, Land Ecuador,

         20  recently had maintenance so bad they had a big gash

         21  in one of their fuselages on a 737, and they revoked

         22  their, I think the terminology is they brought them

         23  down to a level 3, which meant that they could not

         24  go outside of their country.

         25                 Is there a bullet proof decree, a
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          2  world governing body?  No.  The way I understand it

          3  is the United States has their standards, the

          4  Europeans have their standards, much like Congress

          5  and the Senate, they come up with some sort of

          6  resolution of how they are going to apply those

          7  standards.

          8                 So that is basically where it is.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay, so what,

         10  if they are not up to the standards of the FAA in

         11  this country, and they are repaired in France or

         12  some other part, just mentioning that, what

         13  mechanism does the FAA have here that checks on

         14  whether those that are repairing these are up to the

         15  standards of the FAA in this country?

         16                 MR. WISSING:  Again, I am not - -

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And I ask that

         18  because I do not know.

         19                 MR. WISSING:  Right.  I am not a

         20  definitive expert on this either.  But the way I

         21  understand it is, it is the responsibility of the

         22  certificate holder to comply with these standards.

         23  So it would be, to protect their certificate, to

         24  protect their ability to operate in the United

         25  States.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  So a lot of it

          3  is based on trust.  Thank you.

          4                 MR. MOLIN:  Trust of the

          5  manufacturers in most cases that the, and in many

          6  cases, the FAA, the NTSB in a sense for economic

          7  reasons they work hand and glove with the

          8  manufacturer and they except the manufactures

          9  testing and conclusions.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Are there any other

         11  questions.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  I just want

         14  to, for my understanding, when you mentioned the

         15  rudder, and you are saying that when you put the

         16  pressure on the rudder, you are saying that that

         17  caused the tail to break off.  Now is this the part

         18  of the plane here that moves that when you mentioned

         19  the movement?

         20                 MR. MOLIN:  Yes, the back third is

         21  called the rudder.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Right here?

         23                 MR. MOLIN:  The trailing third is the

         24  rudder.  And the part in front of that is called the

         25  vertical fin, and that does not move.  And both of
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          2  those components broke off in this crash. The

          3  rudder, I understand, had the moving part broke into

          4  seven parts, three large parts and four smaller

          5  parts.  That apparently it severed through the

          6  hinges, then the, not then, but apparently very

          7  shortly thereafter the large part, the two- thirds,

          8  the vertical fin, that broke off.  And it broke off

          9  pretty much at the bottom of the fuselage.  As you

         10  have seen that picture, of that part being fished

         11  out of the Bay.  It is at that point that the

         12  airplane had virtually no directional stability as

         13  if it was going to spin around, or if it is going to

         14  turn this way or that way, or whatever.

         15                 There are six major plastic parts,

         16  three on each side, right below where it says AA, on

         17  that tail, there are three plastic lugs that are

         18  maybe that wide and they come down and they look

         19  like almost like a sharks fin as it would be turned

         20  up.  And it has a major hole through it, and it is

         21  made up of carbon fiber strips that are laid every

         22  which way.  I believe they may be in an eighth of an

         23  inch layers, and it is all held together with the

         24  apoxy glue.

         25                 To my knowledge, Airbus is the only
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          2  large airplane manufacturer that does that.  Boeing

          3  is apparently afraid to do that, to use that for a

          4  large structural component.  The whole tail is

          5  mostly plastic that has honeycomb plastic inside, et

          6  cetera. Those parts are being tested by the NTSB.

          7  They took major components, one of them has gone to

          8  Ford Motor Company, a major part of that tail, in

          9  that they had the largest PET (phonetic) scan

         10  machine in the country, if not the world, so that

         11  they can look at the inside of these plastic parts.

         12                 And certainly as a credit to the NTSB

         13  they have been doing extensive testings of these

         14  parts.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you,

         17  gentlemen for your time this afternoon and morning.

         18                 MR. MOLIN:  Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I would like to

         20  call up the next panel, Brett Landsman and Thomas

         21  Lynch.  And immediately after them, the final panel

         22  will be Hector Algarroba and John Power.

         23                 Also, I would like to ask Council

         24  Member Reyna to cast her vote for Intro. 37?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  On Intro. 37 I
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          2  vote aye.

          3                 (Changing the vote to 10 in the

          4  affirmative, 0 in the negative, with no

          5  abstentions.)

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          7  member Reyna. Mr. Landsman.  Mr. Lynch.

          8                 MR. LYNCH:  Yes, my name is Tom

          9  Lynch.  I am a retired fireman, I live in the Belle

         10  Harbor neighborhood.  I was out taking a morning

         11  walk, I was out at what would be if there was a

         12  street, 151st Street and Rockaway Beach Boulevard.

         13                 I will just read from my statement,

         14  it will probably be easier.  Into my line of view,

         15  distance one- half mile, including the altitude, it

         16  was very close to me, a plane looked like it just

         17  finished making a bank turn.  I probably only saw it

         18  for a second or so.  It looks like it is heading, to

         19  me, southeast.  I mean, it is heading southeast,

         20  much lower than usual, that is what sort brought my

         21  attention to it.  I only see it for a second or so.

         22                 At the time it appears just to be

         23  leveling out, it does not seem in my mind that I saw

         24  anything the matter with the plane.  I found out

         25  afterwards there were things going on.  I see a
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          2  small explosion in the fuselage of the plane, behind

          3  the wing, I am looking at the plane almost at a 90

          4  degree angle, and the explosion on that Airbus model

          5  is in the cargo door area.  The explosion is orange

          6  and black smoke, it is like the size of a small car

          7  if you put it up against the size of that airplane.

          8  It is not that large.  The plane continues to fly

          9  for about two seconds, and I see a major eruption of

         10  flames, engulfs the whole, I assumed it was the fuel

         11  in the wings that lit up and it engulfs the whole

         12  fuselage of the plane all the way back.  The plane

         13  just puts it right wing down, makes a curve dive and

         14  crashes to the ground.  The whole event probably

         15  took about 7 to 8 seconds.

         16                 The main point of my observation was

         17  I saw a large piece of the aircraft come off only

         18  after that second explosion. You know, at the

         19  immediate time, I thought it was part of the wing,

         20  obviously, it was the vertical stabilizer that fell

         21  into the Bay.

         22                 Now that is what I saw that morning.

         23  A couple of days later in a dentist office, I meet

         24  Jim Conrad, the retired police officer who was

         25  mentioned.  A chance meeting, he tells me exactly
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          2  what I saw.  That sort of got me started on a little

          3  neighborhood quest of asking people what I saw, what

          4  took place that morning, if they also were

          5  witnesses.

          6                 I gave to Councilman Martinez a list

          7  of the 40 people that I have, personally, spoken to

          8  since this event occurred.  You know, you have 40 of

          9  your constituents that saw an event that not all of

         10  them saw the whole thing that I saw, but I got 20

         11  people that saw a major fireball in the sky before

         12  this plane came down.  A retired priest is one of

         13  them.  We have a fellow who is a nuclear engineer

         14  that saw very similar events.  I mean, it is

         15  outrageous that I have never even been contacted by

         16  the NTSB.

         17                 All right, I mean, I was on

         18  television, not that I was looking to do that, but

         19  somebody grab me.  But something I would like to

         20  make a point of, the second day, after I witnessed

         21  the explosion, my daughter lives on 127th, the plane

         22  crashed on 131st Street, so obviously, I stopped the

         23  first car, I asked them to drive me as close to the

         24  fire, I was on the Fire scene.  I did what little we

         25  could do with garden hoses, et cetera.  But right
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          2  after the fire was out, I said, gee, I have to go

          3  speak to an FBI person tell them what I saw, it is

          4  so important, I see these two explosions.

          5                 So I give my report to the FBI agent,

          6  he is a young fellow, and I think, I am all done

          7  now, I go home, you know, it is over with.  That

          8  evening I see that the FBI was released from the

          9  crash and it is now a matter of the NTSB's

         10  investigation.

         11                 So the next morning I go back to the

         12  NTSB's, the crash site and I say, I want to give my

         13  report to NTSB agent because I think it is paramount

         14  that I do not get mixed in with three thousand or

         15  five thousand other witnesses, this is New York

         16  City, not an Iowa cornfield.  So I give my report

         17  after waiting around about an hour and a half to

         18  find somebody from the NTSB. And the woman gives me

         19  her card, her name is, E. Lenora Ward, and I

         20  remember that, because that evening, and I tell her

         21  just what I told you just before about what I saw,

         22  and that evening I am watching the television at ten

         23  o'clock, and they come up with this wake turbulence,

         24  after the first thing with the birds, they come up

         25  with now with the wake turbulence.  So I say in my
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          2  mind, because I am kind of a simple person, I am not

          3  too swift on things, but I say, you know, let me

          4  call her because what they are saying where this

          5  plane hits the wake turbulence is probably when I

          6  see these explosions occurring.

          7                 And I call her, and all right, it was

          8  a little late, quarter after ten, but she is

          9  probably in a motel room in New York City, and she

         10  sort of like brushed me right off, and said, Sir,

         11  this is an accident investigation, if we need your

         12  help, we will contact you.  Now I am thinking that

         13  somebody should come and look where I am standing,

         14  get some surveying equipment and take some line

         15  sights or something and see if we can line this up

         16  with what is taking place.  And she just dismissed

         17  me.  And I found that outrageous.  So that started

         18  me in my little quest of which I have personally

         19  spoken to 40 people, which you can have the thing.

         20                 I must emphasize that I found out

         21  afterwards in speaking to people who saw events

         22  preceding what I thought was the whole scenario,

         23  that this plane had serious problems prior to what,

         24  the event that I saw the 7 to 10 seconds of what I

         25  saw.
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          2                 That is what I have to say.  Thank

          3  you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

          5  Landsman.

          6                 MR. LANDSMAN:  Thank you, Chairman.

          7  I was not a witness, unfortunately, my mother,

          8  father, aunt and uncle were on that plane.  And the

          9  one thing that I think is very apparent is that

         10  there has been a cover up from the beginning.  There

         11  has been a rush to judgement.  When I saw the head

         12  of the NTSB on TV before they had gathered any data

         13  whatsoever saying that this was an accident.  We

         14  must all put ourselves to that time, that time was

         15  two months and a day after September 11th.  That

         16  time was when there were six- hour lines at the

         17  airport that our loved ones waited on.  Why did they

         18  wait on those lines was to go to visit family,

         19  friends, or go on vacation?  Or was it because the

         20  President had said on TV that there is one way to

         21  defeat terrorism and that was to support the

         22  airlines.  That if you were going to fly, stay in

         23  your normal course.

         24                 Our Congressmen, our Mayor, everyone

         25  said the only way to defeat terrorism was to stay on
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          2  the normal course of conduct.  Well that is what my

          3  parents did, that is what my aunt and uncle did,

          4  that is what many of the people here loved ones did.

          5  They got on that plane.  And when that plane was

          6  going down for those 17 seconds or a minute and a

          7  half, whatever, why don't we have a time line 10

          8  months later?

          9                 I am mad, you are damn right I am

         10  mad.  Because there has been a cover up from day

         11  one.  I understand the national psyche, I understand

         12  the importance not to have everybody flip out over

         13  terrorism, but don't forget us.  Look around you in

         14  this room today, I understand you had three other

         15  meetings, I understand there are other things going

         16  on, government must go on.  However, this is the

         17  lack of compassion that we are getting from our

         18  elected officials.  And that is not for everyone

         19  here.

         20                 Council Member Addabbo, I have seen

         21  him everywhere. He cares, I know that.  Council

         22  Member Martinez, contacted me personally, had

         23  somebody contact me to make sure I was here.

         24  Unfortunately, though, American Airlines, the FAA,

         25  the NTSB, they have different political agendas,
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          2  they have different financial gains.

          3                 Do you have to be a freaking idiot

          4  not to realize that something is wrong with the

          5  composite?  When American Airlines is forced to

          6  conduct investigations on the other planes, and they

          7  find that one of these composites, the bolt, was no

          8  good.  How did they find that?  They certainly did

          9  not find through visual inspection, they found it

         10  through the ultrasound.

         11                 Our airlines, our Air Forces, the

         12  military, they use these composites, but they are

         13  not stupid enough to say only a visual inspection is

         14  good enough.  And some 10 months later, after

         15  finding evidence on another plane that ultrasound

         16  would have found, they had to replace the whole

         17  thing.  Still, the NTSB, still the FAA are going to

         18  sit there and say, visual inspection that is good

         19  enough.  Airbus says a visual inspection is good

         20  enough.  American Airlines says visual inspection is

         21  good enough.

         22                 Is it a coincidence that the only

         23  flights that are being used is out of this country?

         24  Or is it another form of racism?  I never wanted to

         25  say anything, terrorism, I never meant to have
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          2  America go off track.  However, the lack of

          3  understanding and compassion from our own

          4  Congressman, Senator Schumer, Senator Clinton, they

          5  stick their head out to see what is the political

          6  air, which way is it going, which way will it be

          7  better for us to wave at a freaking parade?

          8                 The FAA and the NTSB must require

          9  more than just a visual inspection when you are

         10  dealing with these composite laminates that they do

         11  not know, that are too early, that are too young in

         12  its scientific use.  The fact that this has been

         13  ignored, the fact that there was a rush to

         14  judgement, the fact that everybody fails to realize

         15  that everybody on that plane was a hero, they were

         16  heroic victims taking on terrorism, head on.  They

         17  were the ones that were out on the battlefield.  Did

         18  they go down because of terrorism?  I don't know, I

         19  don't care.  I want to find out the truth.

         20                 Why hasn't the NTSB released its

         21  tapes yet?  What are they holding, what are they

         22  covering up?  Do they fear that if all the

         23  information becomes public, we are going to have

         24  good samaritans who are going to take the task, and

         25  are going to find out that there time line makes no
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          2  sense.

          3                 I am an attorney, in a court of law

          4  there is a chain of custody.  Where is the chain of

          5  custody here?  It is in the NTSB hands, we don't

          6  trust the NTSB.  The NTSB has come out with

          7  misinformation because of their own reasons.

          8                 On September 11th we thought there

          9  were over 5,000 disasters and lives lost.

         10  Thankfully, thank goodness, it was less, it was much

         11  less.  But how do you not include our family members

         12  that got on that plane as the same heroic victims of

         13  the victims of September 11th?  And I would also say

         14  that if there is anyway of adding onto the Board's

         15  resolution, recognizing the victims of Flight 587 as

         16  heroic victims.  We were in a time of war, people's

         17  rights were being restrained just because of their

         18  ethnicity.

         19                 Thank you for your time.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         21  much.  And it is possible to amend the resolution,

         22  if you could provide us with specific input, we

         23  would be happy to take a look at it.

         24                 MR. LANDSMAN:  Thank you, I will file

         25  that afterwards.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Any questions from

          3  Council members?  Thank you very much.  I know that

          4  the next public hearing is waiting to begin at one

          5  o'clock, but we do have one final panel of two

          6  witnesses for Resolution 100- A.  That will be

          7  Hector Algarroba and John Power, please come up to

          8  the witness table?

          9                 Once again, I thank all the

         10  participants for today's hearing on the Committee of

         11  Transportation, and beg the patience of the

         12  participants for the next public hearing.  Mr.

         13  Algarroba.

         14                 MR. ALGARROBA:  Good morning.  My

         15  name is Hector Algarroba, I also lost my parents on

         16  this tragedy.  I come from a country, I live in a

         17  country that was founded and based on the truth.

         18  That is all that I expect, and we expect from the

         19  National Transportation Safety Board, which is the

         20  entity that is addressing this issue.

         21                 I want to thank our Councilman

         22  Martinez for putting this forward, and I also want

         23  to thank the panel present for the concern that you

         24  are showing on our behalf.  The truth is the only

         25  thing that matters, because nothing that is done is
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          2  going to bring our loved ones back.

          3                 And Brett Landsman pretty much stated

          4  the feeling and the concern that we all have.  And

          5  all we ask is for the truth to come out, and the

          6  sooner the truth come out, it will give opportunity

          7  to correct whatever it is that happened in this

          8  tragedy so that other families will not have to live

          9  what we are going through every day of our lives.

         10                 Thank you to the panel, again.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

         12  Algarroba.  And Mr. Power.

         13                 MR. POWER:  Yes, my name is John

         14  Power.  I live in the beautiful Borough of Brooklyn.

         15    And I live down in the southern part of Brooklyn,

         16  which is the Marine Park Section of Brooklyn.  It is

         17  beautiful area, it is the largest park in New York

         18  City, 1,100 acres.  Over that park, I look over

         19  Floyd Bennett Field and I look over the Marine Park

         20  Gulf Course.  So I have a wonderful view of the

         21  water.  And on the beautiful day that was happening

         22  on that tragic day.

         23                 What happened was that, if I just

         24  might say that the eyewitnesses have been totally

         25  disregarded in regard to what happened that day.  In
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          2  1942 there were witnesses that said that there was a

          3  submarine that was sunk at Pearl Harbor.  This past

          4  weekend, I don't know if you know about it, but they

          5  finally found a submarine that was sunk at Pearl

          6  Harbor, and at that point in time, they were totally

          7  disregarded, the eyewitnesses were totally

          8  disregarded.  I don't know if you realized what

          9  happened, this past weekend they found the

         10  submarine, and it was the submarine that was sunk by

         11  the American Fleet on the attack in Pearl Harbor.

         12  You must not disregard eyewitnesses testimony.

         13                 There are a lot of things I could

         14  talk about right now.  I don't really choose to talk

         15  about them.  What happened to the plane?  The plane

         16  was in distressed way before it hit the Rockaways,

         17  the plane was in distressed all the way over in the

         18  Brooklyn area when it was flying, heading towards

         19  the Rockaways.

         20                 I think it is really redundant, if I

         21  get into details of it right now.  All I must stress

         22  that you folks must, you must let the people in

         23  charge, you must let the Congress of the United

         24  States know that we cannot disregard a policewoman

         25  with 25 years worth of experience.  A fireman with
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          2  20 years of experience. A Battalion Chief with 25

          3  years worth of experience.  A Detective with 35

          4  years worth of experience.  A priest, a nuclear

          5  scientist, myself, my wife, who is a psychiatric

          6  social worker with an MSW and a CSW.  Okay, so all

          7  these people see something, and we have been totally

          8  disregarded, our testimony has not been taken at

          9  all, and our input has been totally disregarded by

         10  the NTSB.

         11                 That is all I have to say right now.

         12  If I just may say one other thing.  The NTSB sent

         13  everybody a letter saying please give testimony,

         14  write it down.  If I may do an example with you

         15  folks for a second.  If we all saw something

         16  happened in this meeting right now, and we saw an

         17  explosion at this engine right now, and three months

         18  later the NTSB sent you a letter saying, describe

         19  what you saw, what would you say that you saw?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well I wasn't a

         21  witness then, but I would probably say there was an

         22  explosion.

         23                 MR. POWER:  Basically what you would

         24  say is, I saw an explosion in the blank engine.  But

         25  how would you answer that? Maybe as a Republican you
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          2  would say the right engine, and the Democrat you

          3  would say the left engine.  Okay?  But basically you

          4  would say, what happened, I saw and explosion in a

          5  certain engine. Okay.  The NTSB says okay.

          6                 Okay, my point being that this

          7  engine, is it the right engine or the left engine.

          8  You guys might say it is the right engine, because

          9  you are looking at the plane.  Those people back

         10  there might say it is the left engine, because to

         11  them the view is the left engine.  So that is why

         12  the NTSB really disregards everybody's testimony and

         13  saying, well, there is conflicting information.

         14  There is not conflicting information.  And the

         15  industry, the airline industry calls this the engine

         16  number one, because they don't want any conflicts

         17  with left engine, right engine.  They call the other

         18  engine, engine number two.

         19                 So when the NTSB sends a letter out

         20  and says eyewitnesses please say, give us your

         21  description, well, 50 percent of the people in this

         22  room will probably say that is the left engine, and

         23  50 percent of the people in this room will say it is

         24  the right engine.  So therefore, we disregard all

         25  the eyewitnesses as to what happened.
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          2                 Me, you, and everybody else knows

          3  that something happened to that engine in this room.

          4

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

          7  Power.  Any questions for this panel?  A comment

          8  from Council Member Sears.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.  It

         10  is really not a question.  I think any layperson

         11  looking at such a distance, would probably say there

         12  is a fire in an engine.  Then what do they do?  And

         13  not say it is the right or the left, if they are

         14  looking at certain distance.

         15                 MR. POWER:  Sure.  And if the plane

         16  is going left, is right going east or west, the

         17  plane was doing numerous things. There was an

         18  airline, there was an article in the New York Times

         19  that was referred to before that said, you cannot

         20  rely on the human eyewitnesses because of the fact

         21  that if they saw an airplane crash in a movie, they

         22  would revert to what they saw at the movie.

         23                 That plane, there were so many things

         24  happened to that plane before the plane crashed,

         25  that it was unimaginable as to what happened to that
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          2  plane.  It twisted, it turned, it rolled over.  And

          3  then I also heard like other people, like John

          4  Gambling on the radio saying, well, that is the

          5  problem with eyewitnesses because there are so many

          6  different things that happens, so many different

          7  things that people view.

          8                 Well that plane did everything.  That

          9  plane rolled, it spun, it turned, it corkscrewed, it

         10  did absolutely everything. And not only that, but

         11  that plane in distress over in Brooklyn way before

         12  it hit the Rockaways.  Okay, and that is the most

         13  important thing.  And the NTSB must listen to

         14  eyewitnesses to really plot it out to find out

         15  exactly where the plane was in trouble.  Was it in

         16  trouble way before the power was given to the plane

         17  or not?  And it is very, very important.  There is

         18  also two and a half seconds of unreliable data that

         19  the NTSB has released.  And at that point in time,

         20  what I eyewitnessed it will probably tell them

         21  exactly what happened to that plane on that

         22  unreliable data.  But they do not and they have not

         23  talked to me whatsoever.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Council Member

         25  Addabbo.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chair.  Real quickly, I know we are short on

          4  time, but I had the opportunity to go to a meeting

          5  with the eyewitnesses held in Rockaway, and John you

          6  were one of the last speakers, I believe.

          7                 MR. POWER:  That is correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  And you sort

          9  of, in a nutshell described with the model the

         10  flight of that plane, and your testimony, your

         11  eyewitness account of that was basically the same of

         12  all the others.  Would you mind, today, just to show

         13  the severity of what you saw by using the model like

         14  you did that night?

         15                 MR. POWER:  I would be more than

         16  happy to do that for you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Would you

         18  please?

         19                 MR. POWER:  Okay I will.  I thought

         20  with time restrictions you wouldn't want me to.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  If you could

         22  do it rather quickly, I would appreciate it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes, please.  You

         24  can do it without the mic, but it would be helpful

         25  for us if you do into the camera that records this
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          2  proceeding.

          3                 MR. POWER:  (Not using microphone).

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

          5  Power.  Any other questions, Council members?  Thank

          6  you very much for your time this morning and

          7  afternoon.  This concludes this hearing of the

          8  Committee on Transportation.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 1:13 p.m.)
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